EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30
13 12 31
Monex HFR
2007
Monex Fund of Funds Series | - Monex-HFR Private Equity
Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2007
Butterfield Bank Cayman Limited
Christopher Ebanks
Andrew Leggatt
Kyl 1107 705

12
12 Albert Panton Street, P.0. Box 705, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1107, Cayman Islands

03 6212 8316

2021 30

12 31
2008 18 2008 12 31

1/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex HFR 2007
PayPay
2021 PayPay
2006
21
2013 12
2013
2015

2007 27

2/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MUFG

100

2006 21
2007 27
2008 18
2013 12
2013

2015

3/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ZrrF

— FHRYIA Py AT Ty F b )—A] =
—Honex—HFR 73 A <=z fF 4770 F&
A PFD g o o o sl R b A 2007
(Monex Fund of Funds Series |
Honex—HFE Private Equity Fund&Hedge
Fund Investments 2007)

et ZESH
j{-{fr—:_?,f——_rl’, ix“-)":_':,r‘f:?' EEEI:EE-TI: J{&'_?'f__-'llr’ I-_\.-. ["'__,.T-l'x-[“'
(ra4=) DIFvF o) VEFoF B
Butterfield Bank Butterfield Trust
(Cayman) Limited (Cavman) Limited
fe) = R EACRA,
7 ‘ﬁé gl e
e | Ak h
| TR TS
| B
2| % % MUEGT 7 2 I = 4F—E 2 %
- o (REa—H) VIF oK b
= Hi MUFG Fund Services i
1] ] {Bermuda) Limited
#9 @
B d:::ﬁ_{féﬂk’_ﬂi%?.t P T
fLiTH=A
PayPay P o hwRicA 0 b
¥ A w 7 ANEAFPRE et
$5 W R 524
g e
HFR F¥ o F=Rhifd e FLLE
HFR Asszet Management, LLC
et
RE—Ty— K pPFAPF
(HRIa—¥) VITFoF —
Butterfield Trust (Bermuda)
Limited

4/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

T ) g
nm&&ﬂﬂﬁmh& xm:m@ ;’;lw

( L )

j,.mﬂﬂggggﬁ xa.&&@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ

(T A =T b PR AR & v R

FHPTR T KT Ty X = Yonex R I A= p R AT ATy PR p T 7 B e A b 20 2007

i - :}-‘r}nﬂl]t:—’.r,-l.f#:.iﬁt)‘;fﬂ{i#l-’;&ﬁ:!ﬁhhﬂ{\
(i ) Mz ViR & 7 A o Nt
FoA A TP T4 T i
R P
FIA R Z g AT T =

e P A, S . ?}-yFI

T e Gl l

i Ty
~y P TrE ]

NPTy |-*}

ErsaTrTa TS TEEEEE AT EEEE .
i

e BT P o S B 1

5/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Butterfield Bank Cayman
Limited
Butterfield Trust Cayman
Limited
2006 21
2013
2015
10
2007 10
2013
MUFG 2013
10
MUFG Fund Services
Bermuda Limited
PayPay 2013 12 30
HFR LLC 2013 12 30
HFR Asset Management, LLC

6/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

2013 10

Butterfield Trust Bermuda
Limited

71240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Butterfield Bank Cayman Limited
1967 11

2021 16,450,000 17
9,190
16,450,000

2021 30 UFJ

108.93
1967 11 17
1982 26 1989 10 2004 28
N.T. 16,450,000

2021 HM12 100
65
1925
50

150

8/240



CIMA
CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

9/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
2020 12 31
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA 20

CIMA

10/240



CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

30

23 25

EDINET

26 198

11/240

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

EDINET



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA CIMA

CIMA

13/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

2015 18 70

15/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30

16/240



10

10

5,000

17/240

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5,000

10



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2002
HFR

HFR LLC

18/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HFReu

30

FINRA 2790
FINRA

19/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

21/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

22/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1PO

12

1PO

24/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

25/240



10

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)

2021

Ooooooooooooooooooad

HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund

1940
ETF

UCITS

UCITS

HFR LLC

26/240



15

10

50

27/240

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

50

90



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/240



15

31/240

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

33/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

36/240



10

10

37/240

25

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11 25



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1940 1940
1940

1940

38/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

39/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

40/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

41/240



15

42/240

EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

43/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1.97

0.03

12,000

2020 12 31 1,261,980

0.02

2020 12 31 193,801

1.3

44/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
12 31
10,500
10,000
105
2020 12 31 10,261,053
0.25
12
1.35 2.85
0.85
20

0.25

45/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 12 31 2,443,108
0.10 30,000
2020 12 31 3,154,950
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2021
857,325,048 88.91
45,573,092 4.73
23,524,755 2.44
18,581,064 1.93
945,003,959 98.01
19,218,767 1.99
964,222,726 100.00
2021
HFR LA Naster Trust 1,000.000 826,921| 826,921,473 857,325| 857,325,048| 88.91

Monex 2007 Fund

Carlyle Asia Growth

1.000 65,912,704 65,912,704 41,512,477 41,512,477 4.31
Partners 1V, L.P.

Partners Group

Secondary, 2008 1.000 3,352,147 3,352,147 23,524,755 23,524,755 2.44

Stafford Feeder Clean

Tech Private Equity 11 1.000| 160,393,869| 160,393,869 18,581,064 18,581,064 1.93
(Usb)

OCM European Principal

Opportunities Fund 11 1.000 9,189,783 9,189,783 4,060,615 4,060,615 0.42
(.S.), L.P.
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HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund 2021
Lumyna - York Asian Event Driven
UCITS Fund UwCITS) 5,601.950 21,993| 123,205,333 22,048 123,510,394 14.41
PINCO GIS Dymamic Mulit-Asset 70,323.490 1,630| 114,603,713 1,681] 118,232,398| 13.79
Fund UcITS)
Pictet TR - Atlas uCITS) 8,080.810 14,034 113,408,382 14,554 117,609,689 13.72
Muzinich Funds - Lonh Short

. 116,178,375 13.

credit Yield uCITS) 6,799.650 16,955 115,290,949 17,086 6,178,375 3.55
Man GLG Alpha Select Alternative UCITS) 9,310.990 11,749| 109,393,497 12,095| 112,612,771| 13.14
Lyxor Epsilon Global Trend Fund UeITS) 6,493.360 16,951| 110,069,213 17,196 111,662,717 13.02

HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund

2021

2021
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2020 2021
1,631,468,133 6,925
2011 12
1,802,651,451 7,652
2012 12
2.128,791,191 9,704
2013 12
2.319,488,817 11,027
2014 12
1,955,766,553 10,750
2015 12
1,657,999,334 9,655
2016 12
10 1,513,603,516 9,311
2017 12
11
1,225,617,325 8,264
2018 12
12 1,078,698, 755 7,932
2019 12
13 913,420,248 7,248
(2020 12 )
2020 968,687,032 7.459
971,134,828 7.478
956,743, 385 7.367
961,632,036 7.405
953,946,427 7.346
10 945,213,945 7,218
11 911,993,042 7,236
1 913,420,248 7,248
2021 924,329,655 7.334
947,389,423 7,517
974,123,552 7.729
964,222,726 7.651
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0 0 235,580
) 0) (235,580)
0 0 235,580
©) ) (235,580)
0 16,206 219,374
©) (16,206) (219,374)
0 9,037 210,337
©) (9,037) (210, 337)
0 28,406 181,931
©) (28,406) (181,931)
0 10,202 171,729
) (10,202) (171,729)
0 9,176 162,553
10 ) (9,176) (162,553)
0 14,247 148,306
H ©) (14,247) (148,306)
. 0 12,308 135,998
©) (12,308) (135,998)
» 0 9,966 126,032
©) (9,966) (126,032)
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2020 12 31
Monex-HFR 2007
2020 12 31
1,082,029,150 883,065,820
38,331,282
6,328,558

927,725,660

774,375
577,839
2,426,931
309,750
45,692
193,594
1,043,716
115,968

8,817,550

14,305,415

913,420,245

126,032 7,248

68/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2007

2020 12 31

10,261,053
4,427,481
4,244,530
3,154,950
2,443,108
2,299,711
1,261,980

788,738
491,942
193,801
2,866,570

32,433,864

(32,433,864)

(45,992,680)
(13,976,080)

(59,968,760)

(92,402,624)
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(32,433,864)
(45,992,680)

(13,976,080)

(92,402,624)

9,966 (72,875,885)

(72,875,885)

(165,278,509)

135,998 1,078,698,754

126,032 913,420,245
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(92,402,624)

44,615,022
13,976,080
(1,020,197)
61,991,723
(6,328,557)
(40,238)
(106, 439)
(447,039)
(16,095)
(9,080)
(10,059)
(20, 845)
(187,609)
4,217,704
24,211,747

(72,875,885)

(72,875,885)

(48,664,138)
86,995,420
38,331,282
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15
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HFR

2020 12 31
2017

2020 12 31
32,969,067 261,286
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Monex-HFR 2007
2020 12 31
HFR 88.16
88.16
88.16
HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007 Fund Class C 826,921,473 7,403.855 805,302,525
826,921,473 805,302,525
HFR 826,921,473 805,302,525
8.51
Carlyle Asia Growth Partners IV, L.P. 81,851,751 36,203,165
OCM European Principal Opportunities Fund 11 L.P.
9,189,783 2,851,971
Partners Group Secondary 2008, L.P. 3,672,274 20,152,713
Stafford Feeder Clean Tech Private Equity Il 160,393,869 18,555,446
77,763,295
255,107,677
1,082,029,150 883,065,820
2020 12 31
HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007 Fund Class C
PIMCO-DYN MLT AST-INSACCHUSD 70,323 103,250,000 111,600,035 12.22
LUMY-YORK ASIAN ETDR U-BUSDA 5,602 92,925,000 109,092,316 11.94
MUZINICH LONG SHORT-USD-AC-E 6,800 96,489,054 108,061,670 11.83
PICTET TR - ATLAS-HI USD 8,081 103,250,000 106,846,019 11.70
LYXOR EPSILON GLBAL TR-1USDI 6,493 103,250,000 106,311,947 11.64
GLG ALPHA SEL ALT-IN H USD 9,311 103,250,000 104,605,518 11.45
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Assels

Investments, at fair value (cost ¥1,082,029,150)

Cash and cash equivalents
Otherassets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Administration fees payable
Investment advisory fees payable
Investment management fees payable
Management fees payable

Trustee fees pavable

Custody fees pavable

Distributor fees payable

Agent company fees payable

Accrued expenses
Total Liabilities

Net Assels

Net asset value per Unit (126,032 Units issued and outstanding)

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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¥ 583,065,820
38331282
6,328,558

927,725,660

774,375
577,839
2,426,931
309,750
45,692
193,594
1,043,716
115,968
£,817,550

14,305415

¥ 913,420,245

¥ 7243
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Expenses

Investrment management fees ¥ 10,261,053
Distributor fees 4427481
Audtt fees 4.244 530
Administration fees 3,154 950
Investment advisory fees 2443108
Legal Fees 2299711
Management fiees 1,261,980
Custody fees 788,738
Agent company fees 491,942
Trustee fees 193,801
Other expenses 2,866,570
Total expenses 32433864
MNet investment loss (32,433,864)

Net realized and net change in unrealized gains/(losses) on investments and

foreign currency transactions

Net realized loss on investments and foreign cumency transactions {45,992,680)
Met change in unrealized loss on investments (13,976,080)

Total net realized and net change in unrealized loss on investments and foreign
currency transactions (59,968,760)

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations ¥ (92,402,624)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Met decrease in net assets from operations

Met investment loss ¥ (32,433,864)
Met realized boss on investments and foreign currency transactions {45,992,680)
Net change in unrealized loss on investments {13,976,080)
Met decrease in net assets from operations (92,402,624)

Met decrease in net assets from capital transactions

Redemption of Units (9,966 Units) {72,875 885)
Net decrease in net assets from capital transactions (72,875,883)
Net decrease in net assets (165,278,509)
Net assets at beginning of year (135,998 Units) 1,078,698,754
Met assets at end of year (126,032 Units) ¥ 913,420,245

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Cash flows from operating activities
Met decrease in net assets from operations
Adjustments to reconeile net decrease in net assets

from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:

Met realized loss on investments
Mzt change in unrealized loss on investments
Purchases of investments
Proceeds fromdisposition of investments
Increase in other assets
Decrease in administration fees payable
Decrease in investment advisory fees payable
Decrease in investment management fees payable
Decrease in management fees payable
Decrease in trustee fees pavable
Decrease in custody fees payable
Decrease in agent company fees payable
Decrease in distnbutor fees payable
Increase in accrued expenses payable

Met cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Redemption of Units

Met cash used in financing activities
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and eash equivalents at end of year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

871240

¥ (92,402,624)

44,615,022
13,976,080
(1,020,197)
61,991,725
(6,328 .557)
(40,238)
(106,439)
(447.039)
(16,095)
{(9,080)
(10,059)
(20,845)
(187.609)
4217.704
24,211,747

(72,875,885)

(72,875.883)

(48,664,138)

86,995,420

¥ 38,331,282
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

1. Organization

Monex Fund of Funds Series [ {the “Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust scheme established under the laws
of the Cayman Islands by a master trust deed made by and between Butterficld Bank (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial
Trustee™) and Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial Manager™) dated July 21, 2006, which
allowed for the creation of various Series Trusts.

Pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated September 27, 2007 made between the Initial
Trustee and the Initial Manager, Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2007 (the “Series
Trust™) was created as a series trust of the Trust and commenced operations on January 18, 2008, The Series Trust
was registered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on January 2, 2008. The term of the Series Trust
is limited to fifteen years. The assets and liabilities of the Series Trust are segregated, with a unitholder’s interest
limited to the unitized class in which the investor owns units. The Series Trust operates independently of any other
Series Trust in the Trust and constitutes a separate investment with no beneficial interest in or liability to any other
Series Trust in the Trust.

A supplemental trust deed dated July 12, 2013 appointed Butterfield Trust Cayman Limited (the “Trustee”) to assume
the responsibility of the Initial Trustee. The Initial Trustee retired on July 12, 2013. A supplemental trust deed dated
August 6, 2013 appointed Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited (the “Manager”) to assume the responsibility of the
Initial Manager. The Initial Manager retired on August 6, 2013.

Astmax Asset Management, Inc. (effective on April |, 2013) has been appointed as investment manager to the Series
Trust {the “Investment Manager”). HFR Asset Management, LLC has been appointed as investment adviser to the
Series Trust (the “Investment Adviser”). Monex, Inc. has been appointed as Agent Company for the Manager and
distributor of Units (“Agent Company™ and “Distributor™).

Monex PH Trust (the “PH Trust™) is a Bermuda unit trust established by a Trust Deed dated December 20, 2007, The
Trust Deed was entered into by Butterfield Trust (Bermuda) Limited (the “PH Trustee™) and the Investment Manager.
PH Trust is wholly owned by the Series Trust and is an investment vehicle through which the Series Trust purchases
private equity investments.

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust's administrator (the “Administrator™). Butterfield
Trust (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust's custodian (the “Custodian™).

The Series Trust is designed as a multi-manager investment vehicle in which capital is allocated among a select group
of trading managers (the “Trading Managers™), private equity funds (“Private Equity Funds™), and hedge funds
(“Hedze Funds™). Capital is allocated to Trading Managers through various investments in Bermuda unit trusts (the
“HFR Master Trusts™) that have been established by the Investment Adviser. The Trading Managers utilize various
investment strategies and also have the ability to invest in derivative financial instruments. Butterfield Trust
{Bermuda) Limited (the trustee of the HFR Master Trusts) and MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited (the
administrator of the HFR Master Trusts) are affiliated with the Trustee and Administrator respectively, of the Series
Trust. Capital is also allocated directly to Private Equity Funds and Hedge Funds. Private Equity Funds invest in
various companies, including listed or unlisted equities in Japan, the U.S. and/or other markets. The Hedge Fund
invests in a variety of instruments and markets and generally follows a distressed, macro or credit strategy.

Due to significant redemptions from the HFR Master Trusts from affiliated funds, the Investment Manager voluntarily
liquidated the underlying HFR Master Trusts effective February 1, 2019, March 1, 2019, or April 1, 2019, and as such
HFR Master Trusts ceased operations. The HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007 Fund, a class of the HFR LA Master
Trust, commenced operations on April 24, 2019 and invested in a portfolio of Liquid Alternative Funds selected by
the Investment Adviser that are managed by third party investment managers according to a single strategy. The Liguid

-10-
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Alternative Funds held 88% in the HFR LA Master Trust that may include UCITS (Undertaking for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities Directive) funds, registered investment companies (including mutual funds and
other U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940 funds), and exchange traded funds (ETFs).

The Series Trust's investment objective is to obtain capital appreciation on its assets by investing in various
HFR Master Trusts, Private Equity Funds, and Hedge Funds that employ various strategies. The Investment Manager
actively allocates, and from time to time reallocates, the Series Trust's assets among the various HFR Master Trusts.
In managing the Series Trust’s assets, the Investment Manager may distribute allocations or change the allocation of
assets among existing UCITS in HFR Master Trusts. The Series Trust has committed a set amount of capital to each
Private Equity and Hedge Fund. Thus there are no reallocation of assets among Private Equity and Hedge Funds. The
investment Adviser provides investment advice to the Investment Manager and assists in the investment decisions.

Capitalized terms herein are as defined in the respective Offering Memoranda of the Series Trust or HFR Master
Trusts, unless otherwise noted.

The Series Trust is classified as an investment company as defined in Accounting Standards Update (“ASU") 2013-
08, Investment Companies (Topic 946): Amendmenis to the Scope, Measurement, and Disclosure Requirements. The
Series Trust applies the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic 946, Financial
Services — Investment Companies (“ASC 946™) in its consolidated financial statements and related notes,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The consolidated financial statements are expressed in
Japanese Yen. The following are the significant accounting policies adopted by the Series Trust.

fa) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund
Investments 2007 and its wholly owned subsidiary, Monex PH Trust. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

b} [nvestment transactions and valuation

The series Trust uses the practical expedient to estimate the fair value of all the Investments. Investments in HFR
Master Trusts of ¥805,302,525 are recorded at fair value based on the Series Trust's pro-rata interest in the net assets
of the HFR. Master Trusts, all of which are valued at fair value as determined by the investment manager of the
underlying fund. The HFR Master Trusts can engage in trading of securities and derivative financial instruments,
including futures, forwards, options, and other derivative financial instruments. HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007
Fund may hold Liquid Alternative Funds. Risks to the HFR LA Master Trust arise from the possible adverse changes
in the fair value of such interests and the potential inability of counterparties to perform under the terms of the
contracts. However, the risk to the Series Trust is limited to the amount of the Series Trust’s investment in the HFR
LA Master Trust. Net gain or loss on investments in the HFR LA Master Trust included in the consolidated statement
of operations is net of management fees and if applicable performance-based compensation.

Investments in the Private Equity Funds of ¥77,763,295 are recorded at fair value based on the Series Trust’s pro-rata
interest in the net assets of funds. The risk to the Series Trust is limited to the amount of the Series Trust's investment
in each of the Private Equity Funds. Net gain or loss en investments in Private Equity Funds included in the
consolidated statement of operations is net of management fees and performance-based compensation.

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realized gains and losses on investments are calculated
using the specific identification method. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated
statement of operations.

=11=
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In order to redeem Units of HFR LA Master Trusts-Monex 2007 fund (U.S. dollar-denominated), redemption notice
must be given 5 business days prior to the Dealing Day for weekly redemption and 15 business days prior to the
Dealing Day for monthly redemption. Dealing Days could be monthly, first business day of each month and weckly,
typically Wednesday. Weekly redemptions may be subject to a 10% cap. Partial redemptions are not permitted if the
value of the Series Trust's remaining Units in an HFR LA Master Trust is less than $1,000,000. The Investment
Manager may waive, reduce, or otherwise modify the redemption notice period or the minimum balance at its
discretion.

Investments in Private Equity Funds are considered illiquid. The ability to transfer such interests is restricted in
accordance with the terms of the agreement which constitutes such Private Equity Fund. Certain Private Equity Fund
interests, held by the Series Trust and PH Trust directly or indirectly, may not be transferred without the prior written
consent of counterparties to the agreement, which may withhold such consent for any reason or for no reason.
Distributions from each Private Equity Fund will be received as the underlying investments of the funds are liquidated,
which are expected to occur over the next | to 4 years,

As the Series Trust reached the end of the five year lock-up period (Note 4) and thereafter, it is anticipated that the
Series Trust will allocate a larger percentage of its portfolio to HFR LA Master Trusts ~Monex 2007 Fund, which are
generally more liquid investments than Private Equity Funds,

The Net Asset Value utilized as of the Valuation Day may differ from the Net Asset Value calculated in accordance
with GAAP and included in these consolidated financial statements, based on the timing of receipt of information
from the underlying Private Equity Funds.

fc Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in banks. The Series Trust defines cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as funds held in liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days
or less. This would meet the definition to be considered as a Level 1 Investment type.

fd) Investment income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

fe) Foreign currency translation

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Japanese Yen at
exchange rates at the reporting date. Purchases and sales of investments, foreign currencies, and income and expense
items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese Yen at the exchange rate on the respective dates
of such transactions.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in fair value of investments held. Such fluctuations
are included with net realized and net change in unrealized gain or loss on investments and foreign currency
transactions in the consolidated statement of operations.

Included in net realized gains (losses) on invesiments and foreign currency transactions are foreign exchange gains or
losses arising from sales of foreign currencies and currency gains and losses realized between the trade and the
settlement dates on investment transactions.

i Allecarion of profits and losses to Units

Profits and losses of the Series Trust for each fiscal period are allocated to each Series of Units in proportion to the

respective balances at the beginning of that fiscal period. The fiscal period for the Series Trust begins on January to
December of the calendar year,

-12-
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fg) Use of estimares

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Expenses
fa) Imvesiment managemen, inmvestment advisory, and performance fees

The Investment Manager is paid an investment management fee equal to 1.30% per annum of the Net Asset Value,
accrued monthly and payable quarterly, out of which the Investment Manager shall pay an investment advisory fee to
the Investment Adviser. The Investment Adviser will receive an investment advisory fee equal 1o 0.25% per annum
of the Net Asset Value which is paid out of the investment management fee. Such fee shall be calculated and paid
pursuant 1o the Investment Advisory Agreement.

The Series Trust pays the Investment Manager a performance fee of 10% per annum of the difference between the
Net Asset Value per Unit at the end of a Calculation Period and the High Water Mark per Unit, multiplied by the
number of Units outstanding at the end of such Calculation Period. The Met Asset Value per Unit must exceed both
the High Water Mark per Unit and the Hurdle Amount for performance fees to be deemed payable. Performance fees
earned for the vear ended December 31, 2020 were ¥Nil.

(b} Distributor and agent company fees

The Distributor and Agent Company receive a distributor fee and agent company fee of 0.45% and 0.05% per annum
of net assets, respectively, accrued monthly and payable quarterly out of the assets of the Series Trust. The Distributor
and Agent Company are also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

fe) Managemeni fees

The Series Trust pays a management fee of 0.03% per annum of net assets to the Manager, accrued monthly and
pavable quarterly, subject to a minimum annual fee of US$12,000.

{d) Management fees, incentive allocation, and fees paid to HFR Master Trusts, Private Eguity Funds, and Hedge
Funds

The Investment Adviser receives from the HFR LA Master Trust-Monex 2007 fund, in which the Series Trust invests,
management fees of 0.85% per annum of the net asset value of each Sub-series of the HFR Master Trust, The fees and
allocation are reflected in the fair value of the HFR Master Trusts.

The Series Trust is indirectly subject 1o asset-based fees and performance arrangements paid at the Private Equity
Funds' and Hedge Funds® level. Management fees range from 1.00% to 1.75% per annum of the net asset value or
committed capital balance of each Private Equity investment. A profit or carried interest allocation ranging from 0%
to 20% may be paid to each general partner {or equivalent) of the Private Equity Funds, subject to certain performance
conditions. A performance or incentive fee of 10% may be charged on the earnings of the Hedge Fund investment.

fe) Administrator fee
The Administrator receives an administration fee of 0.10% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable

quarterly, subject to 2@ minimum annual fee of US830,000. The Administrator is also entitled to be reimbursed for out
of pocket expenses.
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{f} Trustee fee

The Trustee receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable quarterly. The Trustee is
also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

fg) Custodian fee

The Custodian receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable quarterly, subject to a
minimum annual fee of US$7,500. The Custodian is also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses.

fh) Other expenses
The Series Trust will also bear its own operating expenses, including legal, audit and accounting fees.
4. Units

Units are offered during the Initial Offering Period at ¥10,000 per Unit, plus a subscription charge not exceeding
2.50% of the subscription price. The subscription charge is payable to the Distributor. Following the close of the Initial
Offering Period, Units will not be available for issue.

Units are subject to a five year and four month holding period or “lock-up™ from the close of the Initial Offering
Period. After the approximately five year lock-up period, each Unitholder may request a repurchase of Units by the
Manager on the relevant Repurchase Day. The first Repurchase Day was May 27, 2013. Any units repurchased will
be at the Net Asset Value per Unit calculated as at the Valuation Day immediately preceding the relevant Repurchase
Day.

A repurchase charge of 2.50% of the applicable Net Asset Value per Unit will be charged and retained by the Series
Trust on any repurchases of Units prior to the seventh anniversary from the Closing Date. The Manager may limit the
number of Units that may be repurchased on any Repurchase Day to 10% of the total number of Units of the Series
Trust cutstanding on such Repurchase Day. In this event, the limitation will apply pro rata so that all Unitholders
wishing to submit Units for repurchase on that Repurchase Day may have repurchased the same proportion of such
Units (but rounded down to an integral number). Repurchase Notices in respect of all Units not repurchased on that
Repurchase Day will be cancelled. Unless previously terminated pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Series Trust will
terminate on January 18, 2023. No redemption charges were charged during the year December 31, 2020.

5. Investments
fal Fair value measuremenis

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (*ASC™) Topic 820 (“Topic 8207), Fair Value Measurement,
the Series Trust defines fair value as the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. Topic 820 also establishes a fair value
hierarchy based on the observability of market prices used to measure fair value. Investments with readily available
quoted prices in an active market or those for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally
will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value.
The Trustee is ultimately responsible for the valuation of all securities held by the Series Trust.

Topic 820 permits the Series Trust, as a practical expedient, to estimate the fair value of the Series Trust’s investments
as the net asset value per share or its equivalent if the net asset value of the investments is calculated in a manner

consistent with the measurement principles of ASC 946, The Series Trust uses the practical expedient to estimate the
fair value of all the investments, which are excluded from the fair value hierarchy.

-14-
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The following are the strategies in which the Series Trust invests, through its investments in the HFR Master Trust:

LA Master Trust Strategy: The investment objective associated with the HFR LA Master Trust (*Trust”) is to
achieve capital appreciation by investing in liquid alternative funds, which may include, without limitation,
investments in UCITS (Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities Directive) funds, registered
investment companies (including mutual funds and other 1940 Act funds), and exchange traded funds (ETFs)
(collectively, “Liquid Alternative Funds™ with each fund being referred to as a “Liguid Alternative Fund”).
Motwithstanding the terms of the Confidential Offering Memorandum, no third party Trading Manager will be
appointed to trade the Trust, though the Investment Manager shall have the discretion to appoint a Trading Manager
to trade the Trust’s portfolio of assets. The Investment Manager will select the Liquid Alternative Funds to be included
in the Trust’s portfolio. Each Liquid Alternative Fund will pursue a separate fund strategy, which may include without
limitation, relative value arbitrage, macro, event driven, and equity hedge strategies,

Relative value arbitrage strategies involve multiple arbitrage investment strategies. The overall emphasis is on making
spread trades that derive returns from the relationship between two related securities rather than from the direction of
the market. Generally, these strategies employ offsetting long and short positions in similar or related securities when
their values, which are mathematically or historically interrelated, are temporarily distorted. Profits (or losses) are
realized when the relative valuation of the two securities changes. In addition, relative value arbitrage strategies
include a methodology to make decisions regarding which relative value strategies offer the best opportunities at any
given time and weighting strategies accordingly in their overall portfolio.

Macro investment strategies include a broad range of sub-strategies in which the investment process is predicated on
movements in underlying economic variables and the impact these have on equity, fixed income, hard currency and
commodity markets. Macro investment strategies employ a variety of techniques, both discretionary and systematic
analysis, combinations of top down and bottom up theses, quantitative and fundamental approaches and long and short
term holding periods.

Event Driven strategies typically include positions in companies currently or prospectively involved in corporate
transactions of a wide variety including but not limited to mergers, restructurings, financial distress, tender offers,
shareholder buybacks, debt exchanges, security issuance or other capital structure adjustments. Security types can
range from most senior in the capital structure to most junior or subordinated, and frequently involve additional
derivative securities. Event Driven exposures include a combination of sensitivities to equity markets, credit markets
and idiosyncratic, company specific developments. Investment theses are typically predicated on fundamental
characteristics, with the realization of the thesis predicated on a specific development exogenous to the existing capital
structure.

Equity Hedge strategies typically include positions, both long and/or short, in primarily equity and equity derivative
securities. A wide variely of investment processes can be employed to arrive at an investment decision, including both
quantitative and fundamental techniques. Strategies can be broadly diversified or narrowly focused on specific sectors
and can range broadly in terms of levels of net exposure, leverage employed, holding period, concentrations of market
capitalizations and valuation ranges of typical portfolios.

The Private Equity Funds in which the Series Trust will invest in include the following strategies:

Growth Capital Strategy: Growth capital is a much more flexible type of financing that includes credit lines for
equipment, working capital and so on. The monies borrowed under a growth capital line of credit can be used for any
corporate purpose. Growth capital enables a wide range of funding solutions to a company at various stages of business
growth.

Distressed Strategy: These funds will seek to invest in distressed securities, and may sell shor, the securities of
companies where the security's price has been, or is expected to be, affected by a distressed situation. This may involve
reorganisations, bankruptcies, distressed sales and other corporate restructurings. Depending on the manager's style,
investments may be made in bank debt, corporate debt, trade claims, common stock, preferred stock and warrants.
These managers will seek profit opportunities arising from inefficiencies in the market for such securities and other
obligations.

S1E
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Secondary Strategy: The strategy includes secondary purchases of stock in a company from a shareholder rather than
purchasing stock directly from the company. It also includes purchases of limited partnership interests or other
ownership interests from other investors.

Fund of Venture Capital Funds Strategy: The strategy focuses on purchasing investment funds that own other
venture capital funds.

(b} Derivative financial instruments and risk management

The Series Trust may buy and sell forward foreign currency contracts. Forward foreign currency contracts are over-
the-counter contractual commitments to purchase or sell a specified amount of foreign currency at an agreed future
date at predetermined price. Forward foreign currency contracts expose the Series Trust to credit and market risks.
Credit risk arises from the potential inability of counterparties to perform under the terms of the contract. The estimated
credit exposure at December 31, 2020 was ¥Nil. The Series Trust is exposed to market risk to the extent that adverse
changes occur in exchange rate of the underlying foreign currency. This market risk is in excess of the amount
recognized on the consolidated statement of assets and liabilities. The Series Trust had no open forward foreign
currency contracts at or during the year ended December 31, 2020,

In addition, investments are made via the HFR Master Trust which may utilize derivative financial instruments with
off-balance sheet risks. Leverage may also be used by the managers of these funds. However, the Series Trust's
exposure to such risk is limited to the amount of its investments.

6. Taxation

Under current Cayman Islands law, the Series Trust is not required to pay any taxes in the Cayman Islands on either
income or capital gains, as each investor is individually liable for the taxes, if any, on its distributive share of the
realized income, gain, loss, deductions, or credits.

It is management’s belief that the Series Trust is not engaged in 2 United States wade or business and will not be
subject to United States income or withholding taxes in respect of the profits and losses of the Series Trust.

As of December 31, 2020, the Series Trust has not recognized a liability in connection with any uncertain income tax
positions taken by the Series Trust. Generally, the Series Trust is not subject to U.S. Federal, State, and local or non-
LS. income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2017.

7. Unfunded Commitments

At December 31, 2020, unfunded commitments related to the Series Trust’s investments in Private Equity Funds
denominated in Euro and U.S. Dollars totaled approximately ¥32 969,067 (€261,286) and ¥58,342,342 (US$565,059),
respectively. Commitments are expected to be binding for the life of each of the respective Private Equity Funds.
Distributions subject to recall amounted to ¥32,109,408 (US3310,987).

8. [Indemnifications

In the normal course of business, the Series Trust enters into contracts that contain a variety of representations and
warranties that provide indemnifications under certain circumstances. The Series Trust's maximum exposure under
these agreements is unknown as this would involve futere claims that may be made against the Series Trust that have
not yet occurred, The Series Trust expects the risk of future obligations under these indemnifications to be remote.

9. Risk Factors
Certain impacts from the COVID-19 outbreak may have a significant negative impact on the Investment Manager's
operations and performance. These circumstances may continue for an extended period of time, and may have an

adverse impact on economic and market conditions. The ultimate econamic fallout from the pandemic, and the long-
térm impact on economiecs, markets, industries and individual companies, are not known. The extent of the impact to
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the financial performance and the operations of the Investment Manager will depend on future developments, which
are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted.

10. Financial Highlights

Below are the per unit operating performance, total return and ratios to average net assets of the Series Trust for the
year ended December 31, 2020. Total return is calculated based on the change in the Net Asset Value during the year.
Ratios to average net assets are calculated for the Series Trust as a whole. An individual investor's return and ratios
to average net assets may vary from those presented based on the timing of the subscriptions and redemptions,
eligibility to participate in new issues and the existence of loss carry forwards. The ratios do not reflect the Series
Trust's proportionate share of income and expenses of the underlying investments.

+

Met asset value, January 1, 2020 ¥ 7932

Income from investment operations

Net investment loss (247)

Net realized and net change in unrealized loss on

investments and foreign currency transactions (437)
Total from investment operations (684)
Net asset value, Decemnber 31, 2020 ¥ 7.248
Total return
Total retum, before performance fee (8.63%)
Performance fee 0.00%%

Total retum, after performance fee 53.63%}
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets (3.32%)

Ratio of expenses to average net assets

Expenses, before performance fee (3.32%)
Performance fee 0.00%
Total expenses and performance fee (3.32%)

11. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 25, 2021, the date these consolidated financial statements were
available 1o be issued. From January 1, 2021 to June 25, 2021, the Series Trust had redemption of ¥55,967,063.

-17-
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Units Fair Value
Investments in HFR Master Trusts (§8.16% ):
Bermuda Unit Trusts (88.16% ):
Liquid Alemative (88.16%):
HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007 Fund Class C (cost: ¥ 826,921,473)° 7,403 855 ¥ 05,302,525
x .

Total Liquid Altemative (cost: ¥ 826921.473) 805,302,525

Total Investments in HFR Master Trusts (cost: 826,921.473) ¥ 805,302,525
{continued)
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Domicile Fair Value
Private Equity Funds (8.51%):
Growth Capital Strategy:
Carlyle Asia Growth Partrers IV, LP.
(cost:¥ 81,851,751)* Cayman Islands ¥ 36,203,165
Distressed Strategy:
OCM European Principal Opportunities
Fund IT({UL.S.), LP. (cost: ¥ 5,189,783) Cayrran Islands 2,851,971
Secondary Strategy:
Partners Group Secondary 2008, L.P.
(cost-¥ 3,672274) Scotland 20,152,713
Fund of Venture Capital Funds Strategy:
Stafford Feeder Clean Tech Private Equity 11 (USD)

t 18,555,446
(cost: ¥ 160.393.869) Metherlands
Total Investments in Private Equity Funds i 71763.295
(cost: ¥ 255,107,677) ——
Total Investments (cost: ¥ 1,082,029,150) ¥ 883,065,820

Percentages are computed based on net assets.
* Represents greater than 5% of'the Series Trust's net assets.

(continued)
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (Continued)
DECEMEBER 31, 2020
(Expressed in Japanese Yen)

The following table categorizes the fair value of investments that are greater than 5% of the net assets of the Series
Trust on a look-through pro-rata basis as of December 31, 2020.

%% of Met
Held through HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007 Fund Class C| Units| Cost in Yen| Fair Value in Yen| Assets
PIMCO-DYN MLT AST-INSACCHUSD 70,323| 103,250,000 111,600,035 1222%
LUMY-YORK ASIAN ETDR U-BUSDA 5602  92,925,000] 109,092,316 11.94%
MUZINICH LONGSHORT-USD-AC-E 6,800) 96,489,054 108,061,670 11.83%
PICTET TR - ATLAS-HIUSD 2,081 103,250,000 106,846,019 11.70%
LYXOR EPSILON GLBAL TR-IUSDI 6,493] 103,250,000 106,311,947 11.64%
GLGALPHA SEL ALT-IN HUSD 9.311) 103,250,000 104,605,518) 11.45%

See notes to consolidated financial statements. {concluded)
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2019 12 31

Monex-HFR 2007

2019 12 31

1,187,615,698 1,002,628,449

86,995,420

1,089,623,869

814,613
684,278
2,873,970
325,845
54,772
203,653
1,231,325
136,813

4,599,846

10,925,115

1,078,698,754

135,998 7,932

99/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Monex-HFR 2007

2019 12 31

3,270,075
2,903,201
581,976
817,519
5,237,785
12,193,444
232,586
1,308,030
9,927,697

36,472,313

(36,472,313)

48,046,300
(58,732,990)

(10,686,690)

(47,159,003)
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148,306

135,998

2019 12 31
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2007

(36,472,313)
48,046,300

(58,732,990)

(47,159,003)

(99,759,566)

(99,759,566)

(146,918,569)

1,225,617,323

1,078,698,754
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Monex-HFR 2007

2019 12 31

(47,159,003)

(48,068,596)
60,333,712
(1,653,766,133)
1,799,088,579
(8,175)
(127,044)
(509,175)
(3,270)
(8,926)
(2,044)
(27,799)

(250, 187)
(836,037)
108,655,902

(99,759,566)
(99,759,566)

8,896,336
78,099,084
86,995,420
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Monex-HFR 2007
2019 12 31
2006
21
2007 27
Monex-HFR 2007
2008 18
2008

15

2013 12
2013
12 2013
2013
2013
HFR
LLC
Monex PH PH 2007 12 20
PH PH

100

MUFG
HFR
HFR

MUFG HFR
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HFR
2019 2019 2019
HFR HFR LA Master Trust
LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund 2019 24
LLC
HFR LA Master Trust
79 UCITS
1940
ETF
HFR
HFR
UCITS
ASU
Topic946
ASC Topic946

ASC946
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GAAP
Monex-HFR
2007 Monex PH
HFR 852,027,030 HFR
HFR
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund
HFR
HFR
HFR
137,658,813
12,942,606
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund
15
10 HFR LA Master Trust

1,000,000
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12,942,606

HFR LA Master

2019 2019 12
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GAAP
1.30
0.25
10
2019 12 31
0.45 0.05
0.03 12,000
HFR
HFR 0.85
HFR LA Master Trust Monex 2007 Fund HFR
1.00 1.75
20
10
0.10
30,000
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0.02

0.02

10,000 2.50

2013 27

10

2023 18
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ASC Topic820 Topic820
Topic820
Topic820 ASC946
HFR
LA HFR LA Master Trust
UCITS
1940

ETF
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2019 12 31

2019 12 31

HFR

2019 12 31
2016

111/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 12 31
31,794,587 261,286
61,371,058 565,059
33,776,298 310,987

2019 12 31
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8,264

(254)
(78)
(332)

7,932

(4.02)

(4.02)

(3.13)

(3.13)

(3.13)

26
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{Expressed in Japanese Yen)
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

Assets

Investments, at fair value (cost ¥1,187.615.608)

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assels

Liabilities

Admmstration fees pavable
Investment advisory fees payable
Investment management fees payable
Management fees payable

Trustee fees payable

Custody fees payable

Distribustor fees pavable

Agent company fees pavable
Accmed expenses pavable

Total Liabilities

Met Assels

MNet asset value per Unit (135,998 Units issued and outstanding)

See notes Lo consolidated financial statements.
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¥

1,002, 628,449

86,095 420

1,089,623 869

Bl4,613
684,278
2873970
FI5.845
54,772
203,653
1,231,325
136,813

4,599,846

10,925,115

1,078, 698,754
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2019
{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Expenses

Administration fees ¥ 3,270,075
Investment advisory fees 2,903,201
Agent company fees 581,976
Custoddy fees 817,519
Distributer fees 5,237,785
Investment management fees 12,193,444
Tustee fees 232,586
Management fees 1,308,030
Other expenses 0027697
Total expenses 36,472,313
Net investment loss (36,472,313)

Net realized and net change in unrealized gains/{losses) on investments and

foreign currency transactions
MNet realized gain on investments and foreign currency transactions 48,046,300
Met change in unrealized loss on mvestments (58,732,990)

Total net realized and net change in unrealized loss on investments and foreign
currency transactions (10,686,6940)

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations ¥ (47, 159003 )

See notes to consolidated financial statements,
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2019
{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

MNet decrease in net assets from operations

Met mvestrment loss ¥ (36,472.313)
Met realized gain on investments and foreign cumrency transactions 48,046,300
Met change in unrealized loss on investmenis (58,732,000)
Met decrease in net assets from operations (47,159,003)

Met decrease in net assets from capital transactions

Redemption of Units (12,308 Units) (90,750 566)
Met decrease innet assets from capital transactions (99,759 560)
Net decrease in net assets (146,91 8,569)
Met assets at beginning of yvear (145,306 Linits) 1,225 617,323
Met assets at end of vear (135,998 Units) ¥ 1,078,698,754

Seenotes o consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2019
{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

Cash fMlows from operating activities
Met decrease innet assets from operations ¥ (47.159,003)
Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in net assels

from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:

Met realized gain on investments (48,068, 590)
Met change in unrealized loss on investments 60,333,712
Purchases of investments (1,653, 766,133)
Proceeds from disposition of investments 1,799,088, 579
Decrease in administration fees payable (8,175
Decrease in investment advisory fees pavable (127,0:4)
Decrease in investment management fees payable (509,175)
Decrease in management fees payable (3,270
Decrease in trustee fees pavable (8,926)
Decrease in custody fees pavable (2,044
Decrease in agent comparty fees payable (27,790
Decrease in distributor fecs payable (250,187)
Decrease in accroed expenses payable (836,037)
Met cash provided by operating activities 108,655,902

Cash Mlows rom financing activities

Redemption of Units (90 T59 566)
Met cash used in financing aclivities (99,759,566)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 8,890,336
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear T8, 000 084
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ¥ 86,995 420

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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MONEX-HFR PRIVATE EQUITY FUND & HEDGE FUND INVESTMENTS 2007

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2019
{Expressed in Japanese Yen)

1. Organization

Monex Fund of Funds Series [ (the “Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trost scheme established under the laws
of the Cayvman Islands by a master trust deed made by and between Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited (the “Tntial
Trustee™y and Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited (the “Initial Manager™) dated July 21, 2006, which
allowed for the creation of various Series Trusts,

Pursuant to the master trust deed and a supplemental trust deed dated September 27, 2007 made between the Initial
Trustee and the Initial Manager, Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2007 (the “Series
Trust™)y was created as a series trust of the Trust and commenced operations on January 18, 2008, The Series Trust
was regigtered under the Mutual Funds Law of the Cayman Islands on January 2, 2008, The term of the Series Trust
15 lirmited to fifteen vears. The assets and labilities of the Series Trust are segregated, with a unitholder’s interest
limited to the unitized clags in which the investor owns units. The Series Trust operates independently of any other
Series Trust in the Trust and constitules a separate investment with no beneficial interest in or liability to amy other
Series Trust in the Trust.

A supplemental trust deed dated July 12, 2013 appoeinted Butterfield Trust Cayman Limited (the “Trustee”) to assume
the responzibility of the Initial Trustee. The Initial Trustee retired on July 12, 2013, A supplemental trust deed dated
August 6, 2013 appointed Butterfield Bank (Cayiman) Limited (the “Manager™) to assume the responsibility of the
Initial Manager. The Initial Manager retired on August 6, 2013,

Astres Asset Management, Inc, (effective on April 1, 20003) has been appointed as investment manager to the Series
Trust (the “Investment Manager™). HFE Asset Management, LLC has been appointed as investment advizer to the
Series Trust (the “Investment Adviser™), Monex, Inc, has been appointed as Agent Company for the Manager and
distribustor of Units (“Agent Company™ and “Distributor™).

Monex PH Trust (the “PH Trust™) is a Bermuda unit trust established by a Trust Deed dated December 20, 2007, The
Trust Dieed was entered into by Butterfield Trust {Bermuda) Limited (the “PH Trustee™) and the Investment Manager.
PH Trust is whaolly owned by the Series Trust and 15 an investment vehicle through which the Series Trust purchases
private cquity investments,

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited serves as the Series Trust’s administrator (the * Administrator™). Butterfield
Trust (Benmuda) Limited serves as the Senes Trust’s custodian (the “Custodian™).

The Series Trust is designed as a multi-manager investment vehicle in which capital is allocated among a select group
of trading managers (the “Trading Managers™), private equity funds ¢Private Equity Funds™), and hedge fimds
(“Hedge Funds™). Capital is allocated to Trading Managers through various investments in Bermuda unit trusts (the
“HFE. Master Trusts™) that have been established by the Investment Adviser, The Trading Managers uhilize vanous
investment strategies and also have the ability to invest in derivative financial instruments. Butterfield Trust
(Bermuda) Limited (the tustee of the HFR Master Trusts) and MUFG Fund Sevices (Bermuda) Limited (the
administrator of the HFR. Master Trusts) are affiliated with the Trustee and Administrator respectively, of the Series
Trust. Capital 15 also allocated to Private Equity Funds and Hedge Funds. Private Equity Funds invest in variouns
companies, including listed or unlisted equities in Japan, the U.S. and'or other markets, The Hedge Fund invests in a
variety of instruments and markets and generally follows a distressed, macro or eredil strategy.

Due to significant redemptions from the HFRE Master Trusts from affiliated funds, the Investment Manager voluntariby
liquidated the underlying HFR Master Trusts effective February 1, 2019, March 1, 2019, or April 1, 2019, and as such
HFE Master Trusts ceased operations, The HFR LA Master Trust - Monex 2007 Fund, a class of the HFR. LA Master
Trust, commenced operations on April 24, 2019 and invested in a portfolio of Liguid Alemative Funds selected by
HFR Asset Management, LLC that are managed by third party investment managers according to a single strategy,

- 10
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The Liguid Alternative Funds held 79%% i the HFE. LA Master Trust that may include UCITS (Undertaking for
Collective Investrment in Transferable Securities Directive) funds, registered investment companies (including mutual
funds and other U8, Investment Company Act of 1940 funds), and exchange traded fimds (ETFs).

The Series Trust’s investment objective is to obtain capital appreciation on its assels by investing in various
HFE Master Trusts, Private Equity Funds, and Hedge Funds that employ various strategies. The Investment Manager
actively allocates, and from time to time reallocates, the Series Trust’s assets among the various HFE Master Trusts,
In managing the Series Trust's assets, the Investment Manager may distribute allocations or change the allocation of
assels among existing UCITS in HFRE. Master Trusts. The Series Trust has comrmitted a set amount of capital to each
Private Equity and Hedge Fund. Thus there are no reallocation of assets among Private Equity and Hedge Funds. The
investment Adviser provides investment advice to the Investment Manager and assists in the investment decisions.

Capitalized terms herein are as defined n the respective Offermg Memoranda of the Seres Trust or HFR. Master
Trusts, unless otherwize noted.

The Series Trust 15 classified as an investment company as defmed in Accounting Standards Update ("AST) 2013-
08, Drvestinent Compearides { Topic 9496 Amendments to the Seope, Measirement, and Diselosire Requirements. The
Series Trust applies the guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic %46, Finencial
Services — frvestmend Compearies (ASC 9467 in its consolidated financial staternent and related notes,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompary ing consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAF), The consolidated financial statements are expressed in
Japanese Ven The following are the significant acccunting policies adopted by the Series Trust

) Consolidkation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund
Investments 2007 and its wholly owned subsidiary, Monex PH Trust, All significant mtercompary balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

b Frvestmend frorac oy cd velucdion

Investments in HFR Master Trust of ¥852,027,030 are recorded at fair value based on the Series Trust’s pro-rata
inkerest in the net assets of the HFR Master Trusts, all of which are valued at fair value as determined by the investment
manager of the underlving fimd The HFE. Master Trusts can engage in trading of securities and derivative financial
instruments, including futres, forwards, options, and other derivative financial instruments HFE LA Master Trast -
Monex 2007 Fund may hold Liquid Altermative Funds. Risks to these HFE. Master Trusts arise from the possible
adverse changes in the fair value of such interests and the potential inability of eounterparties to perform under the
terms of the contracts, However, the risk to the Series Trust is limited to the amount of the Series Trust's investment
in each of the HFR. Master Trusts. Met gain or loss on investments in HFR Master Trusts included in the consolidated
staternent of operations is net of management fees and if applicable performanc e-based compensation,

Investments in the Private Equity Funds and Hedge Funds of ¥137,658.813 and ¥12,942,606, respectively, are
recorded at far value based on the Series Trust’s pro-rata nterest in the net assets of respective funds, all of which
are valued at fair value as determined by the investment manager (or equivalent) of the undertving fimd, another party
of the fund in charge of valuation o an mdependent third party. Valuation procedures for marketable securities rely
on observable market mputs including closing exchange prices or recently executed trades. Valuation procedures for
non-marketable investrments include discounted cash flows analysis, comparable public market valuation, and
comparable acquisition valuation. Other factors, such as the cost of undertying investments, developments since the
acquisition of the investments, camparizons to similar publicly traded investments, subsequent purchases of the same
investment by other investors, the current financial position and operating results of the issuer may also be considered.
The estimated far values of the Private Equity Funds® and Hedge Fund's investments could difTer significantly from
the values that would have been determined had a ready market for the securities existed. Furthermore, there is no

=11-
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asgurance that upon liquidation the Private Equity Funds or Hedge Funds will realize values presented in the report.
The risk to the Series Trust is limited to the amount of the Series Trast's nvestment in each of the Private Equity
Funds and Hedge Funds. Met gain or loss on investments in Private Equity Funds and Hedge Funds mcluded in the
consolidated statement of operations is net of management fees and performance-based compensation.

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade date basis. Realized gainz and losses on investments are calculated
using the specific identification method. Realized and inrealized gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated
statemnent of operations.

In order Lo redeern Units of HFR LA Master Trusts-Monex 2007 fund (U5, dollar-denominated), Dealing Davs could
be monthly, first business day of each month and weekly, typically Wednesday, Redemption notice must be given 5
business days prior to the Dealing Day for weekly redemption and 15 business days prior to the Dealing Day for
monthly redemption. Weekly redemptions may be subject to a 107 cap. Partial redemptions are not permitted if the
value of the Series Trust's remaining Units n an HFR LA Master Trust is less than $1,000,000. The Investment
Manager may waive, reduce, or otherwise modify the redemption notice period or the minimum balance at its
discretion,

Investment in the Hedge Fund is currently held within a side pocket. Side pocket is a portion of underly ing investment
portfolio which 15 segregated from other mvestments of the portfolio for the purposes of allocating gains and losses,
The =ide pocket investments have no redemption rights, is illiquid and has no active market. The Series Trust will
receive distributions on this side pocket as the assets held within the side pocket are liquidated. The fair value of
investments in side pockets at Decernber 31, 20019 15 ¥12,94 2,606,

Investments in Private Equity Funds are considered illiquid. The ability to transfer such interests is restricted in
accordance with the terms of the agreement which constitutes such Private Equity Fund, Certain Private Equity Fund
interests, held by the Series Trust and PH Trust directly or indirectly, mav not be transferred without the prior written
consent of counterpartics to the agreement, which may withhold such consent for any reason or for no reason. The
Series Trust may not withdraw from such a Private Equity Fund.

As the Series Trust reached the end of the five vear lock-up period (Mote 4) and thereafler, it is anticipated that the
Series Trust will allocate a larger percentage of its portfolio to HFR LA Master Trusts —Monex 2007 Fund, which are
generally more Liguid investments than Private Equity Funds.

The MNet Asset Value utilized as of the Valuation Day may differ from the Met Asset Value caloulated in accordance
with GAAP and included in these consolidated financial statements, based on the timing of receipt of information
from the undertyving Private Equity Funds.

fel  Cesh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held m banks, The Series Trust defines cash and cash equivalents in the
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as funds held in liquid investments with original maturities of 90 davs
or less, This would meet the defimtion to be considered as a Level 1 Investment type.

(el Tevestment income crd expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis,

el Foreign currency iranslation

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Japanese Yen at
exchange rates at the reporting date, Purchases and sales of investments, foreign currencies, and income and expense

items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese Yen at the exchange rate on the respective dates
of such transactions.
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The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in foreign exchange
rates on investments from the fluctuations arising from changes in fair value of investments held, Such Muctuations
are included with net realized and unrealized gam or loss on investments and foreign currency transactions i the
consolidated staternent of operations.

Included in net realized gains (losses) on mvestments and foreign currency transactions are foreign exchange gains or
losses arising from sales of foreign currencies and currency gains and losses realized between the trade and the
settlement dates on investment transactions.

i Allocetion of profits and fosses to Uity

Profits and losses of the Series Trust for each fiscal period are allocated to each Series of Units in proportion to the
respective balances at the beginning of that fiscal period. The fiscal period for the Series Trust begins on January 1,
2019 to December 31, 20019

fg) Uke aof estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements m conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3. Expenses
fa) Irvestment mencgement, investment advisory, and performeance fes

The Investrment Manager is paid an mvestment management fee equal to 1, 3026 per annum of the Net Asset Value,
accrued monthly and pavable quarterly, out of which the Investment Manager shall pay an investment advigory fee to
the Investment Adviser. The Investrnent Adviser will receive an investment advisory fee equal to 0.25% per annum
of the Met Asset Value which iz paid out of the investment management fee. Such fee shall be calculated and paid
pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement.

The Series Trust pavs the Investment Manager a performance fee of 1096 per annum of the difference between the
Met Asset Value per Unit at the end of a Caleulation Penod and the High Water Mark per Umit, multiplied by the
number of Units outstanding at the end of such Calculation Period, The MNet Asset Value per Unit must exceed both
the High Water Mark per Unit and the Hurdle Ameunt for performance fees to be deemed payable. Performance fees

eamned for the vear ended December 31, 2019 were ¥Nil.

i) Distrifutor ad agent compay fees

The Distributor and Agent Company receive a distributor fee and agent company fee of 0.45% and 0.05% per annum
of net assets, respectively, accrued monthly and pavable quarterly out of the assets of the Series Trust, The Distributor
and Agent Company are also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses,

el Mamagement fes

The Series Trust pays a management fee of 0.03% per annum of net assets to the Manager, accrued monthly and
payable quarterly, subject to a minimuem annual fee of USE1 2,000,

-13-
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(el Aemaeement @es, incentive affocation, and @es paid to HFR Arster Trusts, Privege Equity Funds, aond Hedge
Sy

The Investment Adviser receives from the HFR LA Master Trust-Monex 2007 fund, in which the Series Trust invests,
management fees of 0.85% per annum of the net asset value of each Sub-series of the HFR Master Trust. The fees and
allocation are reflected in the net asset value of the HFR Master Trusts,

The Series Trust is indirectly subject to asset-based fees and performance arrangements paid at the Private Equity
Funds” and Hedge Funds® level Management fees range from 1.00%6 ta 1.75% per annum of the net asset value or
committed capital balance of each Private Equity investment. A profit or camried interest allocation mnging from (8o
to 20%% may be paid to each general partner (or equivalent) of the Private Equity Funds, subject to certain performance
conditions. A performance or incentive fee of 10%% may be charged on the eamings of the Hedge Fund investment.

e} Admindstrator fee

The Administrator receives an administration fee of 01026 per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and payable
quarterly, subject toa minimum annual fee of USE30,000. The Administrator is also entitled to be reimbursed for out
of pocket expenses.

i Tristee fe

The Trustee receives a fee of (.02% per anmum of net assets, accmed monthly and payable quarterly, The Trustec 1=
also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses,

g Custocdice fre

The Custodian receives a fee of 0.02% per annum of net assets, accrued monthly and pavable quarterty, subject to a
minimum amnual fee of USST 500, The Custodian is also entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses,

i) Chler expenses
The Series Trust will also bear its own operating expenses, including legal, audit and accounting fees,
4. Units

Units are offered during the Initial Offering Period at ¥10,000 per Unit, plus a subscription charge not exceeding
2. 50%% of the subscription price. The subscription charge is pay able to the Distributor, Following the close of the Initial
Offering Period, Units will not be available for issue.

Units are subject to a five yvear and four month holding period or “lock-up™ from the close of the Initial Offering
Period. After the approximately five vear lock-up period, each Unitholder may request a repurchase of Units by the
Manager on the relevant Repurchase Day, The first Repurchase Day was May 27, 2013, Any units repurchased will
be at the MNet Asset Value per Unit calculated as at the Valuation Day immediately preceding the relevant Repurchase
Dy,

A repurchase charge of 2.508% of the applicable Met Asset Valie per Umit will be charged and retained by the Series
Trust on any repurchases of Units prior to the seventh anniversary from the Closing Date. The Manager may limit the
number of Units that may be repurchased on any Repurchase Day to 1090 of the total number of Units of the Series
Trust outstanding on such Kepurchase Day. In this event, the limitation will apply pro rata so that all Unitholders
wishing to submit Units for repurchase on that Repurchase Day may have repurchased the same proportion of such
Units (but rounded down to an integral number). Bepurchase Motices in respect of all Units not repurchased on that
Repurchase Day will be cancelled. Unless previously terminated pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Series Trust will
terminate on January 18, 2023, No redemption charges were charged during the vear December 31, 2019,
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5 Investments
fer) Fair velue meaniremenis

In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) Topic 820 (“Topic 8207, Fair Falue AMeastrement,
the Series Trust defines farr value as the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to ransfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. Topic 820 alzo establishes a fair value
hierarchy based on the observability of market prices used to measure fair value, Investments with readily available
quoted prices in an active market or those for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally
will have a higher degree of market price cbservability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring Fair value.
The Trustee is ultimately responsible for the valuation of all securities held by the Senes Trust.

Topic 820 permits the Series Trust, as a practical expedient, to estimate the fair value of the Series Trust's investments
#5 the net asset value per share or its equivalent if the net asset value of the investments is calculated in a manner
consistent with the measurement principles of ASC 946, The Series Trust uses the practical expedient to estimate the
fair value of all the investments,

Investment assets and liabilities reported at fair value are classified in one of the following categories:

Level 1. The values for securities classified as Level 1 are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical
securities in an active market. Since valuations are based on guoted prices that are readily -accessible at the
measurement date, valuation of these securities does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2. The values for securities classified as Level 2 are based on quoted prices in non-active markets for
which all significant inputs are observable either directly or indirectly, Level 2 inputs may also include
pricing models whose inputs are observable or derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data,

Level 3. Values for securities categorized as Level 3 are based on prices or valuation techniques that require
inputs that are both significant to the fir value and unobservable. These inputs reflect the Series Trusts™ own
assumptions about the assumptions a market participant would nze in pricing the security. Little if any market
activity exists for Level 3 securities,

Each of the investments in Private Equity Funds is estimated to be liquidated realized over the next 1-4 vears. The
Series Trust is unable to estimate when the Hedge Fund liquidity restriction will be lifted.

The following are the strategies in which the Series Trust invests, through its investments in the HFR. Master Trusts
and Hedge Funds:

LA Master Trust Strategy: The investment objective associated with the HFR LA Master Trust (“Trust™) is to
achieve capital appreciation by investing i liquid altemative funds, which may include, without limitation,
investments in UCTTS (Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transtferable Securities Directive) funds, registered
investment companies (inchiding mutual funds and other 1540 Act funds), and exchange traded funds (ETFs)
(collectively, “Liguid Altemative Funds™ with each fund bemng referred to as a “Liguid Alternative Fund™).
Motwithstandmg the terms of the Confidential Offering Memorandum, no third party Trading Manager will be
appointed to trade the Trust, though the Investment Manager shall have the discretion to appoint & Trading Manager
to trade the Trust’s portfolio of assets. The Investment Manager will select the Liquid Alternative Funds to be included
inthe Trust's portfolio. Each Ligud Altemative Fund will pursue a separate fund strategy, which may include without
limitation, relative value arbitrage, macro, event driven, and equity hedge sirategies.

Relative value arbitrage strategies involve multiple arbitrage investment strategies, The overall emphasis is on making
spread trades that derive retumns from the relationship between two related securities rather than from the direction of
the market. Generally, these strategies employ oftsetting long and short positions m similar or related securities when
their values, which are mathematically or historically mterrelated, are temporarily distorted. Profits (or losses) are
realized when the relative valuation of the two securities changes. In addition, relative value arbitrage strategies
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inchide a methodology to make decisions regarding which relative value strategiez offer the best opportunities at amy
given time and weighting strategies accordingly in their overall portfalio,

Macro investment strategies include a broad range of sub-strategies in which the investment process i= predicated on
movernents in underlying economic variables and the impact these have on equity, fixed income, hard currency and
commodity markets, Macro investment strategies employ a variety of techniques, both discretionary and svstematic
analysis, combinations of top down and bottom up theses, quantitative and fimdamental approaches and long and short
term holding periods.

Event Driven strategies tvpically include positions in companies currently or prospectively involved in corporate
transactions of a wide variety including but not limited to mergers, restructurings, financial distress, tender offiers,
shareholder buybacks, debt exchanges, security issuance or other capital structure adjustments. Security types can
range from most semior i the capital structure to most junior or subordinated. and fequently involve additional
derivative securities. Event Driven exposures include a combination of sensitivities to equity markets, credit markets
and idiosyneratic, company specific developments, Investment theses are typically predicated on fundamental
characteristics, with the realization of the thesis predicated on aspecific development exogenous Lo the existing capital
struchore.

Equity Hedge strategies typically include positions, both long and/or short, in primanly equity and equity derivative
securities. A wide variety of investment processes can be emploved to amrive at an investment decision, including both
quantitative and fundamental technigues. Strategies can be broadly diversified or narrowly focused on specific sectors
and can range broadly in terms of levels of net exposure, leverage employed, holding period, concentrations of market
capitalizations and valuation ranges of typical portfolios.

The Private Equity Funds in which the Series Trust will invest in nclude the following strategies:

Growth Capital Strategy: Growth capital is a much more flexible type of financing that includes credit lines for
equipment, working capital and so on, The monies borowed under a growth capital line of credit can be used for any
corporate purpose. Growth capital enables a wide range of funding solutions to a company at various stages of busness

growth.

Distressed Strategy: These funds will seek to mvest in distressed securities, and may sell short, the securities of
companies where the security's price has been, or is expected tobe, affected by a distressed situation. This may invalve
reorganisations, bankmptcies, distressed sales and other corporate restructurings. Depending on the manager's style,
investments may be made in bank debt, corporate debt, trade claims, commoen stock, preferred stock and warrants,
These managers will seek profit opportunities arising from inefficiencies in the market for such securities and other
obligations.

Secondary Strategy: The strategy ncludes secondary purchases of stock ina company from a sharcholder rather than
purchasing stock directly from the company. It also includes purchases of limited parmership interests or other
ownership interests from other mvestors,

Fund of Venture Capital Funds Strategy: The strategy focuses on purchazing investment fimds that own other
vienfure capital funds.

(bl Dervivative fincmcicd invtruments and risk memagement

The Series Trust may buy and sell forward foreign arrency contracts, Forward foreign currency confracts are over-
the-counter contractual commitments to purchase or sell a specified amount of foreign currency at an agreed fiture
date at predetermined price. Forward foreign currency contracts expose the Series Trust to credit and market risks.
Credit risk arises from the potential inability of coumterparties to perform under the terms of the contract, The estimated
credit exposure at December 31, 20019 was ¥Nil. The Series Trust is exposed to market risk to the extent that adverse
changes occur in exchange rate of the underlying foreign currency. This market rigk is in excess of the amount
recognized on the consolidated statement of assets and Liabalities, The Series Trust had no open forward foreign
currency contracts at or during the vear ended December 31, 2012

-16-

124/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In addition, investments are made via the respective HFR. Master Trusts and Hedge Funds which may utilize derivative
financial instroments with off-balance sheet risks, Leverage may also be used by the managers of these funds,
However, the Series Trust’s exposure to such risk is limited to the amount of its investments,

6, Taxation

Under current Cayvrnan Islands law, the Series Trust is not required to pay any taxes in the Cavman Islands on either
income or capital gains, as each investor is individually liable for the tces, if any, on its distributive share of the
realized income, gain, loss, deductions, or credits,

It is management’s belief that the Series Trust is not engaged in a United States trade or business and will not be
subject to United States income or withholding taxes in respect of the profits and losses of the Series Trust.

As of December 31, 2019, the Series Trust has nof recognized a liability in connection with anmy uncertain income tax
positions taken by the Series Trust. Generally, the Seriez Trust is not subject to U8, Federal, State, and local or non-
LS. income tax examinations by tax authorities for the v ears before 2016,

7. Unfunded Commitments

At Decemnber 31, 20019, unfimded commitments related to the Seres Trust’s investments in Private Equity Funds
denominated in Eure and 1.5, Dollars totaled approximately ¥31,794,587 (€261,286) and ¥61,3 71,058 (US8565,059),
respectively, Commitments are expected to be bmding for the life of each of the respective Private Equity Funds,
Distributions subject to recall amounted to ¥33, 776,298 (USE310,987).

8. Indemnifieations
In the normal course of business, the Senes Trust enters mto contracts that contain a vanety of representations and
warranties that provide indemnifications under certain circumstances. The Series Trust's maximum exposure under

these agreements is unknown as this would involve fiture claims that meay be made agamst the Series Trust that have
not vet occwrred. The Sertes Trust expects the risk of future obligations under these indemnifications to be remote.
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9. Financial Highlights

Below are the per unit operating performance, tolal refurn and ratios to average net assets of the Series Trust for the
vear ended December 31, 2009, Total retum is calculated based on the change in the Net Asset Value during the vear,
Raties to average net assets are calculated for the Series Trust as a whole. An individual investor's return and ratios
to average net assets may vary from those presented based on the timing of the subscriptions and redemptions,
eligibility to participate in new issues and the existence of loss carry forwards. The ratios do not reflect the Series
Trust's proportionate share of income and expenses of the underly ing investments,

Met asset value, January 1, 2019 ¥ 8.264
Income from investment operations
et nvestment loss (25
Met realized and unrealized loss on investments and
foreign currency transactions (78}
Total from investment operations (332)
Met aszet value, December 31, 2009 ¥ 7,932
Total return
Tetal return, before performance fee (4.021%%
Performance fee -
Total return, after performance fee (4.02%%
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assefs (3.13%%
Ratio of expenses to average nef assels
Expenses, before performance fee (3.13%
Performance fee -
Total expenses and performance fee (3.13)%

11, Subsequent Events

Subzequent events have been evaluated through June 26, 2020, the date these consolidated financial statements were
available to be isswed.

Since the start of January 2020, the outbreak of coromavirus, which is a rapidly evolving situation, has adversely
impacted global commercial activities, The rapid development and fluidity of this situation precludes any prediction
a8 Lo its ultimate impact, which may have a continued adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger
# period of global economic slowdown, The Investment Manager is monitoring developments relating to coronavirus
and is coordinating its operational response based on existing business continuity plans and on guidance from global
health crganizations, relevant governments, and general pandemic response best practices,
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2021

980,894,017

16,671,291

964,222,726

126,032

7,651
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2021 16,450,000 17 9,190
16,450,000
10
75
2013 12 30
2021

3,059,588,788
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12 31
2020 2019

188,301 20,512 133,793 14,574
895,394 97,535 623,614 67,930
1,083,695 118,047 757,407 82,504

260 28
1,370,415 149,279 967,591 105,400
825,943 89,970 924,423 100,697
2,196,358 239,249 1,892,014 206,097
1,124,038 122,441 1,104,689 120,334
43,433 4,731 46,804 5,098
10,955 1,193 12,056 1,313
6,833 744 7,336 799
551 60 551 60
13,814 1,505 18,217 1,984
4,479,937 488,000 3,839,074 418,190
1,043,030 113,617 782,079 85,192
3,065,811 333,959 2,693,087 293,358
4,108,841 447,576 3,475,166 378,550
532 58 1,626 177
42,940 4,677 60,167 6,554
43,472 4,735 61,793 6,731
4,152,313 452,311 3,536,959 385,281

1.00
16,450,000
2019 1.00

16,450,000 16,450 1,792 16,450 1,792
272,442 29,677 277,466 30,224
38,732 4,219 8,199 893
327,624 35,688 302,115 32,909
4,479,937 488,000 3,839,074 418,190
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12 31
2020 2019

3,740 407 3,524 384
19,829 2,160 22,309 2,430
20,277 2,209 20,671 2,252
5,197 566 5,347 582
252 27 2 0
49,295 5,370 51,853 5,648
47,620 5,187 56,446 6,149
49,133 5,352 54,624 5,950
2,141 233 11,901 1,296
98,894 10,773 122,971 13,395
3,534 385 8,407 916
3,534 385 8,407 916
95,360 10,388 114,564 12,479
483 53 1,893 206
95,843 10,440 116,457 12,686
518 56 571 62
(28) ® @ ©
490 53 569 62
145,628 15,863 168,879 18,396
29,680 3,233 29,787 3,245
14,100 1,536 13,732 1,496
4,684 510 4,300 468
6,225 678 4,334 472
1,960 214 2,109 230
1,101 120 1,101 120
523 57 1,070 117
4,332 472 4,623 504
62,605 6,820 61,056 6,651
83,023 9,044 107,823 11,745

132/240



12 31

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 2019
83,023 9,044 107,823 11,745
(90) (10) (56) ®
31,141 3,392 22,579 2,460
(518) (56) 71) (62)
113,556 12,370 129,775 14,136
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2020 2019

16,450 1,792 16,450 1,792
277,466 30,224 269,643 29,372

(3,047) (332)

83,023 9,044 107,823 11,745
(85,000) (9,259) (100,000) (10,893)
272,442 29,677 277,466 30,224

8,199 893 (13,753) (1,498)
(°0) (10 (56) (6
(90) 10 (56) ®

31,141 3,392 22,579 2,460

(518) (56) (571) (62)

30,623 3,336 22,008 2,397

38,732 4,219 8,199 893
327,624 35,688 302,115 32,909
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2020 2019
83,023 9,044 107,823 11,745
22,968 2,502 17,374 1,893

(483) (53) (1,893) (206)
(518) (56) (571) (62)
503 55 33 4
4,402 480 7,236 788
(1,094) (119) (296) 32)
(17,227) (1,877) (3,484) (380)
91,574 9,975 126,222 13,749
(260) (28) 24,878 2,710
(3,058) (333) (4,320) 471)
(21,913) (2.387) (93,908) (10,229)
245,784 26,773 109,999 11,982
(152,624) (16,625) (220,144) (23,980)
147,199 16,034 111,247 12,118
268,808 29,281 143,841 15,669
(797,897) (86,915) (366,355) (39,907)
(313,961) (34,200) (294,762) (32,108)
633,675 69,026 107,610 11,722
(85,000) (9,259) (100,000) (10,893)
548,675 59,767 7,610 829
326,288 35,543 (160,930) (17,530)
757,407 82,504 918,337 100,034
1,083,695 118,047 757,407 82,504
4,628 504 8,703 948
3,347 365

3,047 332
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TDR
TDR
TDR

TDR

TDR

TDR

TDR
TDR
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2020 12 31
2020 FASB ASU 2020 01 321
323 815
2020 12 15
2020 2021 FASB ASU 2020 04 848
ASU 2021 01 848
ASU 2020 04 2020 12 2022 12
31
GAAP 2021 01
848 2020 12
ASU 2021 01 ASU 2021
01 ASU
2020 10 FASB ASU 2020 08 310 20

310 20 35 33

2020 12 15

ASU

2020 10 FASB

ASU 2020 10
2020 12 15
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
39,267 24,453
149,034 109,340
895,394 623,614
1,044,428 732,954
1,083,695 757,407
2020 12 31 68.2 2019 20.1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
260
260
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AFS HTM

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,305,724 38,639 (151) 1,344,212 898,566 9,670 (1,613) 906,623
15 15 3,348 81 3,429
13,290 (345) 12,945 13,290 (399) 12,891
12,976 267 13,243 44,600 188 (140) 44,648
1,332,005 38,906 (496) 1,370,415 959,804 9,939 (2,152) 967,591

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
825,943 44,015 869,958 924,423 19,488 (277) 943,634
825,943 44,015 869,958 924,423 19,488 (277) 943,634

2020 12 31 2019 12 31 AOCI  AOCL
12
12
2020 12 31 12 12

29,486 (124) 236 ([eD)) 29,722 (151)

15 15
12,945 (345) 12,945 (345)
29,501 (124) 13,181 ((372) 42,682 (496)
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2019 12 31 12 12
85,107 (460) 125,749 (1,153) 210,856 (1,613)
202 202
12,891 (399) 12,891 (399)
28,531 (140) 28,531 (140)
85,309 (460) 167,171 (1,692) 252,480 (2,152)
46,411 @) 46,111 @11
46,411 @) 46,111 Q@17
2020 12 31 AFS AFS 3.11
2019 20 26.09
AFS 1.16 2019 0.85
HTM CECL
2020 12 31 HTM 2019
HTM 5.02 HTM 2019 12 31
0.60
FFELP
FFELP
97 100
FFELP
2020 12 31 2019
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2020 12 31
12 10 10
1,344,212 1,344,212
15 15
12,945 12,945
13,243 13,243
15 1,370,400 1,370,415
825,943 825,943
825,943 825,943
15 2,196,343 2,196,358
15 2,196,343 2,196,358
15 2,196,343 2,196,358
2019 12 31
12 10 10
906,623 906,623
202 3,227 3,429
12,891 12,891
44,648 44,648
202 3,227 964,162 967,591
924,423 924,423
924,423 924,423
202 3,227 1,888,585 1,892,014
202 3,227 1,888,585 1,892,014
202 3,227 1,888,585 1,892,014
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
312 325 2,960 3,002
441 471 3,123 3,177
AFS
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
AFS
143,934 442 (28)
3,265 104
55,256 49 (129)
55,991 651
147,199 546 (28) 111,247 700 (129)
35
20
30
2020 12 31 3.95 2019 4.92 2020 12
31 1.2 2019 1.7
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90

2020 12 31
34,171 34,171 34,171
117,025 117,025 (843) 116,182
64,730 305 901 65,936 (246) 65,690
2,297 2,297 34) 2,263
218,223 305 901 219,429 (1,123) 218,306
164,781 13,085 388 178,254 (94) 178,160
4,950 39,870 44,820 (1,257) 43,563
169,731 52,955 388 223,074 (1,351) 221,723
7,686 7,686 © 7,677
20,292 20,292 (429) 19,863
1,520 1,520 44) 1,476
33,712 7 33,719 (186) 33,533
63,210 7 63,217 (668) 62,549
614,427 217 6,372 1,112 622,128 (668) 621,460
1,065,591 53,477 7,661 1,119 1,127,848 (3,810) 1,124,038

3.6
28.8

2019 12 31
33,101 33,101 33,101 33,101
127,509 127,509 127,509 127,509
64,665 462 938 31 66,096 (294) 65,802 969 65,127
5,475 5,475 5,475 5,475
230,750 462 938 31 232,181 (294) 231,887 969 231,212
158,922 19,957 425 179,304 (260) 179,044 425 178,879
57,509 57,509 57,509 57,509
216,431 19,957 425 236,813 (260) 236,553 425 236,388
7,765 7,765 14) 7,751 7,765
26,253 26,253 44) 26,209 26,253
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3,043 3,043 ([©) 3,038 3,043
30,172 2 30,174 (48) 30,126 7 30,167
67,233 2 67,235 (111 67,124 7 67,228
561,911 6,007 1,632 569,550 (425) 569,125 6,487 563,063
1,076,325 20,421 7,370 1,663 1,105,779 (1,090) 1,104,689 7,888 1,097,891
2.9
25.9
2020 12 31
2020 201,102 5,087 3 206,192
2019 321,849 36 4 321,889
2018 132,714 35,124 242 168,080
2017 100,365 139 135 100,639
2016 112,112 112,112
173,341 13,091 7,284 1,112 194,828
24,108 24,108
1,065,591 53,477 7,661 1,119 1,127,848
30

2020 12 31 30 59 60 89 90
34,171 34,171
117,025 117,025
109 109 65,827 65,936
2,297 2,297
109 109 219,320 219,429
178,254 178,254
44,820 44,820
223,074 223,074
7,686 7,686
20,292 20,292
1,520 1,520
7 7 33,712 33,719
7 7 63,210 63,217
1,332 413 1,914 3,659 618,469 622,128
1,441 413 1,921 3,775 1,124,073 1,127,848
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2019 12 31 30 59 60 89 90

33,101 33,101
127,509 127,509
66,096 66,096
5,475 5,475
232,181 232,181
445 445 178,859 179,304
57,509 57,509
445 445 236,368 236,813
7,765 7,765
26,253 26,253
3,043 3,043
16 16 30,158 30,174
16 16 67,219 67,235
2,646 1,466 2,146 6,258 563,292 569,550
3,091 1,482 2,146 6,719 1,099,060 1,105,779

2020 12 31 GDP

CECL
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2020 12 31
294 260 111 425 1,090
1,268 1,195 604 20) 3,047
(429) (104) 25) 75 (483)
8 253 16 277
@18) ©@74) @7 (319)
@ 199 198
1,123 1,351 668 668 3,810
2019 12 31
2,375 645 115 429 3,564
(1,715) (385) 95 112 (1,893)
8 112 21 141
(374) (211) (137) 722)
294 260 111 425 1,090
181 181
294 260 111 244 909
CoviD 19 2020
2020 2020 30
TDR
2020 2020 30
2020 12 31 2020 12 31
PCD 2019
12 31 PCD 1.8
90
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
90 90
31 31
31 31
7 7
7 7
1,080 32 1,026 2,138 1,440 192 568 2,200
1,087 32 1,026 2,145 1,440 223 568 2,231
TDR
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 TDR
2020 12 31 12 TDR
90 TDR 2019
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
TOR
901 938
388 425
3,499 3,067 192
TOR 4,788 4,430 192
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
205,169 205,169 156,443 156,443
176,218 171,965 2,439 350,622 2,225 175,806 2,087 180,118
300,306 300,306 382,999 382,999
29,480 903,997 396,655 1,330,132 27,318 883,832 208,404 1,119,554
39,862 11,394 51,256 33,101 33,101
63,135 63,135
11,848 11,848
34,171 34,171
22,997 22,997 5,732 5,732
3,483 3,483
12,024 12,024 12,859 12,859
14,086 14,086 69,328 69,328
272,564 272,564 98,031 98,031
1,083,955 1,127,848 444,659 2,656,462 757,407 1,105,598 210,491 2,073,496
2020 12 31 18.46 2019 33.01 S P Al
2019 Al 2019
2020 12 31 18.46 2019 19.73 S P A
1 2019 A1l 2020 12 31

9.23 2019 0.00
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
3,449 3,449 3,449 3,449
46,630 (13,549) 33,081 46,295 (12,381) 33,914
4,305 (3,295) 1,010 3,979 (3,287) 692
45,645 (39,752) 5,893 44,533 (35,784) 8,749
100,029 (56,596) 43,433 98,256 (51,452) 46,804
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,200 1,057
201 244
4,938 4,798
6,429 6,099
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
551 551
551 551
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
16,517 (5,562) 10,955 16,517 (4,461) 12,056
2020 12 31 2019 2020 12 31
2019 2020 1.1
2019 1.1 2025 12 31 5.5
10
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,043,030 782,079
2,534,209 2,213,240
3,577,239 2,995,319
10
23,059 22,086
12 4,311 5,023
12 210 506
10 27,580 27,615
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10
491,810 409,439
12 11,742 36,489
12 470 6,304
10 504,022 452,232
531,602 479,847
4,108,841 3,475,166
2020 12 31 0.3 2019 0.2
2020 12 31 0.06 2019
11
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,538 1,593
1,538 1,593
12
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
246,000 63,443
43,105 1,809
289,105 65,252
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
153,166 153,166 143,601 143,601
2,388 2,388 1,638 1,638
155,554 155,554 145,239 145,239

2020 12 31
90.7 2019 89.7 2020
12 31 2019
200
110 2020 12 31 152.2 2019
143.4
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13
2029
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,071 934
125 77
1,196 1,011
2,346
1,045 907
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2,555 3,419
2,612 3,446
6.09 6.03
5.25 5.25
2020 12 31
2021 791
2022 574
2023 386
2024 244
2025 201
2026 886
3,082
(470)
2,612
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
31,592 38,653
15,638 16,684
47,230 55,337
390 1,109
47,620 56,446
3,424 2,794
1SDA
2020 2019
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2020 12 31
52 380,660 1,401 (1.261) 140
52 380,660 1,401 (1,261) 140
2019 12 31
98 405,205 853 (701) 152
98 405,205 853 (701) 152
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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2020 12 31
1,401 1,401 1,401
(1,261) (1,261) (1,261)
140
2019 12 31
853 853 853
(701) (701) (701)
152
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
140 152
140 152
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16

2020 12 31 2019 12 31

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1,344,212 1,344,212 906,623 906.623
15 15 3,429 3,429
12,945 12,945 12,891 12,891
13,243 13,243 44,648 44,648
1,357,470 12,945 1,370,415 954,700 12,891 967,591
1,401 1,401 853 853
1,261 1,261 701 701
FFELP
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

171/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
ooooodooooooooodd

12,891 12,891 12,625 12,625
54 54 266 266
12,945 12,945 12,891 12,891
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
12,945 12,891
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

17

1,083,695 1,083,695
260 260
825,943 869,958
1,124,038 1,130,605

3,577,239 3,577,239
531,602 532,044

172/240

757,407 757,407
44,015 924,423 943,634 19,211

6,567 1,104,689 1,106,674 1,985

2,995,319 2,995,319
(442) 479,847 480,148 (301)
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2020 12 31
12
1,045 39 1,084
13 12 21 8 2,142 2,196
908 12 32 51 124 ®) 1,124
76 76
1,966 24 53 59 2,266 112 4,480
328 328
2,534 1,043 3,577
243 272 16 1 532
43 43
2,777 272 16 1 1,414 4,480
(811) (248) 37 58 2,266 (1,302)
(811) (1,059) (1,022) (964) 1,302
2019 12 31
12
733 24 757
178 22 2 41 1,649 1,892
806 9 48 93 149 1,105
85 85
1,717 31 50 134 1,798 109 3,839
302 302
2,213 782 2,995
356 75 42 7 480
62 62
2,569 75 42 7 1,146 3,839
(852) 4 8 127 1,798 (1,037)
(852) (896) (888) (761) 1,037
18
CIMA
2011 CIMA 11
2020 12 31 17.60 2019
21.12
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
176,218 2,224
35,118 35,697
34,171 33,101
233 227
1,282 7,256
8,178 6,907
2,447 2,432
401 697
199 538
989 493
39 40
1,052 1,056
4,646 2,415
1,298 1,416
2020 12 31 0.372
2019 0.734
2019
25
2.5 3.00 2029 15
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2019 152.9

2020 12

47.4
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at 31 Dacembar (TIn thavsands of Unifed Stafas dodiars)

Jrisris] 2019
Assels
{rash and demand deposits with banks 168,301 155793
Lash eguivsienis 355,394 [r=tt)
Toral arsh dus from B 1,083,685 TS 40T
Shirt bam irvestmants ¥
Deeied securities
Available for 53k 1AT0A1S 8675
Fiedd o raturity E25.043 824423
Tootal investrments i debt sacurifies. 2,186,358 1852014
Lo and parficpafions receabls, et of sloasnce for credit losses 1,124,038 114558
Pramisas, aquipment and compuier softeass 43433 LT
Intangiie axsels 10,955 1205
Actnapd infenest 5,333 T35
Goodwil =51 5
Diher gssets 13514 -l
Tokal assets 4 4T3 53T 3E3007L
LiabBities
Custormar deptats
Mon-rrerest bearing 1,043,030 Taa,oTe
e by 3065811 Z
Total customer deposis 4,108,541 AT 5
Accrued inenes m 1
DEhisr Rabilties: 42540 0,187
Total piher Eabites 43472 B1.783
Total Esbilities 182353 3596958
Smareboiders equity
Coriman share caciial (51,00 par; authorised shaves 18,450,000 (2019: $1.00 g sutharised sharss 16,450,000 16450 16450
Feained samings 272842 17 486
Seoumiated cther comprehissive: veoene (l0s3) ] 2155
Total shaseholdes’s equity 327 624 s
Teital iabiEties and sharshoddar's equity 4ATIIH 3558074
Signed on belaif of the Board by:

Michast A, Wciatt Erwin Dikau
Wanaging Director Ghiel Financial Gificar

The accompanying noles on pages 610 32 e an integral part of these consofdated francal statemants.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the year endsd 31 Dacember (I theusands of Unisd Stafes dallars)

] Fuipl]
Nen-irlerest income
Asset management 3740 3524
Banlking 19223 23m
Founin anchange Ievemma 20277 HEH
Trust 5147 53T
Cither ron-inbines! ncome 252 2
Tetal aoa-interest income 43,265 L1883
Interest income
Inieness &nd 1823 on lpans 4T 554468
Imvemiments 43133 54524
Deposis with banis PR L 11,801
Tokal bviarest income 9EEM 122371
Ifatest Expenso
Degusits 153 8407
Total intene enperde 3534 8,807
et imterest income befoce provision for credit recoveries 95,380 114,864
Provigion lor credl recoverias 483 1853
et mterest ineome after prowision for credi recoveries 5243 116457
et realkered gains (losses) on avaRabis for siie Testnhents 518 LT ]
He! othes gains flasses) {2
Tatal cther gains (losses) 450 =3
Tolal net revenss 145,628 156,878
Hom-intenss? expense
Sataries and other ampioyes banels 5,680 I
Technciogy and commemicaions 14100 13732
Proparty 4554 4300
Peofessions and outsiis sendces BIS 4334
NON-NGIME taKes 1,980 2108
Ampriisation of infanglbla assets 1,1m 1Ie
Marketing 523 147
Crinar expenses 4332 LEZ3
Total noo-intenest axpense 62,605 1,056
Het income 33093 107.873
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the pear ended 31 Decamber (in thousands of Unifed Stales dodars)
Lina item in the Cencalidated Statemnent of operations, if any. i pag |
Comprehensive income -
Net incame xdrrad 0T
Aoeretion of mit | seaBoad paing on helc (D meurly et
transfomed o avaiabledorsale invegiments {80) {563
Netunrealised gainslorses] arsing during Me period Has el
Redassification of realised Gans o nel noome Nt realivad (gaing) losses on avalabia for sale ivedtments {518} 71}
Yol comprabinsiva Incoma EEE] i

The accomganyng metes on pages § 1o 32 ame an iiagral pact of these consoitated financal statemeds.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

Forifig year ended 31 December (In thousanas of Unifed Sisdes dodars)
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200 il
Common shane capial lseed and outsiending

Authorised. ixsued and ity paid {20120: 6,450,000 shares, 3073: 18 4500000 shares} 18450 15450
Retained earings

Eaance 8 baginning of year I Ass 268 BT
Cumulative efiect from changs i actounting policy {Nede 2} (3047 -
it v for pear fatrad 07 823
Cash ivifands deciared and pald [E5.000) {100.000)
Balanoe 3% and of year Py 277 466
Recumulated other comprehenshve income (Joss)

Batence at baginning of year 8,169 {13,753
Hold to matarity investment adjustmens.

Ameetiation of et nans o ot incorme B0 56
Ket change in unamortisad gains on beld to maturity Evestments o) 58
Available for sale investment adjusiments

Grerss uniealzed goins (losses) 3,18 22578
Trarster of reaksad (gaing] b nat incoma [518) Cli)
et chazge in unnealisad and nealsed gaing (osses] on avalabie for sale nvestments 30,623 22,008
Balance o end of year 8132 8100
Taital sharehalders aguity rifv.] 6

The accompanying noles o pagas 610 32 am an integeal part of ese comsofidsted fimancial siatements.
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EButterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For fhe yaar anded 31 Dscambar (in thousands of United States dolars)

HH 2019
fows from operating acthifies
rm -t 07823
Achusments 1o neconcis net income 1o operaing cash foes:
Depraciation and amorsstion ol 17374
Fuovision for coedit retoveries 483 {1,583}
Het realtsed (gains) lokses oo aveikebie jor sake ivesments {5783 571}
Changes i operating assets and Eabilities:
[irereie) decraass in soored inpesl mohate 503 ks
[ncreane) decressa in other assels 4402 THE
incrmase {tecmase) i sccnaed imenst payati (1484} [256)
Incrgast [dRcragss] in siher katdting {irzamn (3484
prewided by (ssed in} operating activities 1574 126,222
Gash fows from iavesting actiites
el [Increase) decreasa in shor e imestments (260 HATE
Additions to premises, squpment and compuler sabeare {3.058) 14,320}
Wit [incheass] dacease in kians and parficipatons scebvable {21553 {83,508)
Hikd 10 maturiyy imwesiments: proceads. from maturiies and pay downs 5TEE 100,20
Fiald 30 maturity fnvestmen’s: purchatas (152,624} [220.244)
Fvailaible for sale vestments: proceeds o sales 147,485 117
Avaiable for sale irvestmants: proceeds fom matuding and pary downs 68,808 A
Ayaiable for saie innestmonts: sorchases (797 8T} (355, 255)
Cash provided by [wsed in) investing activities {313,961} i2oa7ER
Cash fiows from financing activities.
et incrisese [decradde) in demand and tenm depash iabiites GEETS 07ER
Ciash diviserets paid £5,000) {900,000
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities SE8ETS A
Matincrease (decresse] in cash due from banks 326,268 {160.330)
Cash due from banks a2 beginnieg of year 157407 18357
‘Carsh due from banks at end of ysar 1083885 157,407
?&mé ot en 4508 8,703
Supplemantal disciosure of non-cash iems
Extinguishmant of lnan in exchange or ovailabis or 5238 vesiments - iu7
Beadiaction in nist loins duse & Enital adopion of & cument dapacied cnidt el maded 3047 a

Tha aceompanying noles on pages § o 32 an an injegral past of these consoldated fnaniil satements.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For ihe year endad 31 December (In thousande of Unfed States dofises)

Mote 1: Nature of business

Buserfeld Bank (Cayman] Limied (e “Bani) is a full senvics community bank and & peovidar of spechiised wealh management senices. Senvices offered include retail, privae &
corpernlit banking, inessury, ssant managemest & personal § insfutional rust services i tha Cayman islnds,

mm-mmmmzzwwmarmdunuausufunﬁmmmwaamwmwmmuﬂ.nmmasmummm“
mwhmwhammwmmuscmmm*mmmmhmmw Tha Sutierficid
Geoup it rguibted by the Bemuda Manetary Authority (BMA], whils e Sank is requisted by e Cayrman islands Monetary Acshoriy [CEWA]. Bicth reguiainrs operatie N acotnlance wift
Bassi principles.

The Bank hokds & setegony ' banking Beence and & st Soence under the Banks and Trus! Companies Actof the Cayman 'slands. In additien, the Bacl is cenced under e Sacures
and Investrant Business A

Tha Rank oans direcly and indirecsly the loliowing subsidiades:

Field Dirmciors {Cayman) Linited Flgkd Secrataries (Cayman] Limiad Fiakd Nominges (Cayman) Linked
Butterfield Trust (Cayrran] Limiled ButierSald Fiduciany Saevices [Czyman) Limied

The: Bank has siuctured Hs opemtions in cder that & wil not be desmed i b engaged in irade or busing$s wiftin thit ULS. for puipases of LS. fadenm| 1 acs, of subjct 10 Lamation in
any justsdcsicn.

Mote 2 Significant Accounting Policies
3. Basis of Prasentation and Use of Estimates and Assomptices

The accpuniing and francisl rpading pafiies of B Bank snd s subsiianes conorm 1o generaly acsepted accounting princplas in the Urlind States of America [BAAFT, The
preparation of francial siements n accoedanct with GAAD mquires management % maks esiimates and Ssangion that afiect the reponed amoonts of 5wy and RibiSes anc
dmeimze of contingent assets and EabiStes ¢ the date of the francial ststements and tha reporiad amous of siveriuss and sxpensss during the year, and Bcai resuits could cffer
from those estimates.

Ciiical acoounting esimeates ans these Tl spquiy management i niake subjsctive or comple fudsmens. abeus the afiact of matiors that sm iberertly Ltensin and may change in
subseguent periocs. Changes thal may be required in the undedying assumplions or estimates in i areas oouid have 8 matarial impect on the future Snandial condition anc el
of aovess thit the most crifical ascounting polices upon which the Bank's financial condiicn and pariormance depends, and whish imvohes the most comgies
o subjeciie dackions or assessments, e o5 folows:

= Alowanch for coedl bk

= Fairvaiue and enpaiment of finsncial Bstnuments

«  Impaimnent of inlang e ases

«  Srase-bated paymacis
b. Basis of Consalidation

The corsolidated Gnancial satements ineiude the accounts of the Bank and 25 wholy-faned scbaidadas. Intertampany stooles and ensacions hawe been elmnmed.

The Bk conagbdates enlifes whene & holds, directly or indirectly, mone $ian 50% of the veing rights or wheea it emercises controll Entities whers e Bank hols 20% nstﬂ'l- of e
wiing faltts andior has the ablity 1 axercie signiicant infuence are sccountad for undil the squly method, and the pro ki shars of S ingoms (les) & Inchodd in Gther non-inerest
income

c. Forelgr Curmency Translation

Autsts g0 fabiities avising from forsgn comency transactions ane iransizted o Unbed Steies dolars at S raies of exchange pomeaing At T balance shéel dale whils 2ssociaed
reverises and Experses ant transizsed to Unkied Blates dofars & the rafes of exchange prevaiing thiooghout the yeer. The resulling gans or Josses any incuded in foreign encrangs
reverisa in the Consoiiatnd Statement of Operations.

d. Ascets el in Trust or Custody

Securties snd properties (sfher than gash snd deposts held wih the Sank) held in tust, cusiody, agency of fdusiary capacty for customens an nol insiuded o the Gonsaiaied
Babince Shests because the Bank = nol the berefciany of thess assts.

g Cash Due from Banks

C-ash chun om banks Tnclude cash on hand, cash Bems in the process of caliecion, amounts dos from comespandant anks and Wighly Sgusd investments ot ae acy comverthio fo
known amotnts of cash and which 2 subiect 19 a0 nsignificant. risk of change in fair veiue. Such invesiments an those with 3 maturty of Ewee mongs or bess o the date of
scquisition: and includa pnrestricied Yo depess, oartScates of capost and easlry bils,

f. Short Term investments

mmmmammunmhnmhdﬂrﬂmmmmﬂﬁGhmrwmlﬁpfmhummmm rastriced
demand deposts, and (2} unnestriced tenm depesiis and treasury biis with & sty grester than Svee months from the Sate of scquisiien.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(i thousands of Lintad Srates doliars)

Mote Z; Significant Accaunting Paolicies {continued)
5 Investments
Irwestmesnts in et securifies are clesifiad as avaliabie for sk ["AFST) o heid Yo matury [HTM).

Irvvpstmerss arp classPed primarly 25 AFS whin wsed f mansge the Bank's exposure in inerest rate and uidty movemen's, as well 35 % make siralegic langer-tam Investments,
EFS imventments ae camied at fair vales in the Consclidaied Balance Sheets wilh umeatsed gaing and logses repored ag net increase oF decreane o Accumuisted Other
Cremprehansive incomsfLoss) (PADCT), net of slowance jor credi losses.

trrﬂ'l'-h‘l!M'!MM!‘HH‘!mmwWMWHMHMEmﬂHWHmmhMWMMMd
alowance for credi kosses. Unnscognised gains and lekses on HTM serurities s disckoted in the nolis 15 the covssldatad Snancdal sistements, The specifit identSecation method &
mammmthmﬂmm“mmmmmmmmhmeMMdm

Intoest coee, induding Amonisation of premiums and dscounts, on securiies for which cash Rows am nol considantd wroersin ane induded in ntecest income in the Consolidated
Sumesnas of Operations. For securites with uncerizin cash fows, the imvestments ane accounted for under the cost recovery method, whersby 82 principal and copon pay=ents
riscmived asm anobad 5o & Tedisction of the amatised tost and ciming amount. Accnzalof incoma b suspended i respest of debl securties that ans in daful, of Som which il & unilely
that futtne infenest payments will be recaived as schudiled.

Impalrment and eredit losses (from 1 January 2020}

For 06 Securites, whine mansgamant coas not axpect i mecover the entin: ssorised cost basis of the security and intends 1o el such securiies of it bs move Buply than not thit e
Bank will be recuined 1o sell e Securies bsfave recovering the amorfisad cost, § reSODYSSS 2 impaiment oas equal 1o the full diernce Setween te amortised cost basis and the G
waka of those Securies Srough the ncome stalament. Follawing the recogniion of impaimnent, the Sacurity's new amortised cos! basis is B potvious Basis less inpaiment.

Whan managemant does nek nsene jo self or & & more Beely Tan not il the B wil hold such securiies unti secowaring the amonises cosl, management delermines whathar iy
condit krssns exist, See Noe 2§ Aleance for Coedi Losses.

Recognition of other-than-temporasy Impairments (prior ta 1 January 2020)

Fer debl spcuriias, management considars a decling in &ir walue 1o be oiherdhan-lamporany whon B does mot wpect i recover the entire amorised cost bash of the sequrity.
Inveatmants i debt securfias in unrealised loss posifians are analyesd s per of management's SRQoing assessmant of cthar-chan-semporary impatmaent ["OTTT), Wien mansgament
intends: i sall such securities or if ks mare Bosly than nol that the Bank wil be requind o 568 the Secxities belons recovenng the amotisad cost, i recognises an mparment kres egesd
1o e il etererca bebwesn v ammoriised cost basis and the fair vebes of those securities. When management doss ot infend 10 sell or i is mors Wiety than not tat the Bank wil hold
such securiies untf recovesing e amodtised 008, MANMCemen] dstermines whethar any credit lesses wds! i identily any OTTI.

Uindler certain cromstances, managemir will périom & quadtatie determination and considers @ vanety of i, Rchading the angth of e 20 extgnt to which the fair vaiies Fas
e hags Fan cost; adverse condion Speciisaly msted 10 the industry; getoraphic ara o finesial condiion of the isuar or underying coliecal of 2 securly, payment st of
she sscurily; changes 1o the mting of e securiy by a rg agency; the voladiity of the Ssir vl changes; end changes I fair valag of ihe apcurty afer the balance sheel date
Adprratively, management estimates cash flows over e nemaining bris of the undertying securfy I rsess whidher et Keses el

In siations wheny thene i credit ioss, only Be amount of Srpairment relatng 19 credi keses on AFS and HTM ivvestmants i recognised in net inoomd. Fuor AFS invegiments, the
dacrase i fait vakot reating 10 laetors cifar than cTecil I0SSes e MRCOSNed i ADCE Cash fow stimates tHike ino acoount expectaiions of reiewant maskel dnd aoonoric &t & of
the end of the eeparting period, mmhmmwmmmmﬂmmmammmwmw
wwamwmmﬂmmmmmummmamhmmhmmmuamdm
riarie; prices of obsarvable market parametes. When cenvbie marke! prices and parmelens do ol xist, jusgment i necessary 1o estimate mooveratie value which ghes rse i
MMHMMMWmmMMMnmwmmhmmmmmm
prendymient assumplions, fype and qually of coatenl, and mane sentiment.

wﬁmmmmmmWmummummmmmhmm«WMWumzm
e actunl vaiue 2 which the iTvestments mey ba ulimalely sold or the uitimate cish Sows that may ba moovensd, If the assumplions on which managembnl b i fair valuations
WMMMWWMM'HM“MMMWWHMW#M*M.

h. Loans

Lmnmummmmmumhmmmmmmmmm.mmuwmmma
the koan wsing the efactive iterest method, or on 3 bass appromasng 2 leval rale of ratur over the 367 o the lan, aucept for loans classified 28 non-acerual. Prepaymen? paraities.
I ayplicelie under B heems of e speciic ioan agreemient, #o¢ mecognised aiso upon recalpt of payment.

Acquired loans

Arqubed oans thal, s of e date of anquisition, have epetenced a Bonot dataripration i creclt quality sinoe odgineSon, ane accounied for a5 puithased eedi:
deerioeated [FOD°] loans. PODHloans ase recorded 25 el purchiase prios pius & slowance for expected cradi iosss 4 the time of oquisition. Changes In estimates of sxpectssd el
iiasee a¥er acquisiion ane fecognitnd 8 3 movement in provision for credil reooveries: (kesex] In the Incoma statement, Genesaly, Boguired loans hat maet e Banics defnifon for
non-acerasl status ane congideted 1o be POD loans.

The Sank's purchased credit-ampained ["PCF) loans oulstanding =5 af 1 Jasuicy 2020 are now classified 25 PCD loans and beth e amotised cost nd an allowisncs for expecied oredt
iaten arp disckcsed and Bicudid with slber non-FCD lnans’ fiputs. The Bank wil tordnue to recogniss tha amortisation of the noncredit Gscounl, if any, as inens inoome based cn
the yield of such assets.

Participated or Assigned Loams

The Barit may act as lead lendar on laege knens fom tme 1o time and may, for Siraegic o epmmencal reasons, Assign porins of suth lobne (6 othar marit paridpants. Such
wmmrﬁﬂdmwmmuwmmmﬁmwﬂMNMﬁmmmmmww
particnion and assignmant In such lcars. The Bank records ta unassgned porfion of T ptincipal outstanding i SUch and on (e balance sheel and meoads only it propocional
shars o inlinest income on the unassignied porfion of tha taan in the consoidated ssstement of cpassons.

T
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(I thousands of Urited Stafes doliars)

Note 2: Significant Accounting Palicies (continued)

b Loass (contisued)

impaired loans

f loan s considered 16 be impaired when, bised on caent information and evints, the Bank determines that it wil not be able 1o coliect afl amounts dus according 1o h lakn conlracL
sy scheduied iarest payments. Impaimd bane incude all reracenang loans and a8 leans modBied In a troubled debt restnuchuing [TDR) even ¥ full codectabilly & expicted
folgwing the resiucaring.

1f the Bank cefermines that the expaced realiabla valize of the impaed loen i less than tha ecanded investment in tha isan (net of previous charge-ois. defemss oam fees o Cosis
and wiamanised prsmiem o discound], impaiement & mcognised through en aliwance estimata. If v Bank determines that part of the aSowance & uncolisciizie that amot B
chamged off.

Kan-aocnasl
Coenmersial, Commircial sl estate s Consume oans (eectucing credit cand consumer leans] am plscad on nof-accrual stehrs immecdistely i

* i the opinion of managemend, Tull payment of principal of inbenesl S i docb o
= principal or imenes! i 90 days past due.

Residential morighges ae piaced on non-acorual status mesdslely &

+  inthiropnaon of management, ful paymant of pringipal or basrest is in doubl or
s when peincinal or intenest is 90 days past due, uiess the kan i wel secuned and any crgoing colisction efforts ane reasonably expecid 1 resullin repayment of af
Emeunts due undar e contfacha WS of he ian.

nkaress income on non-aconal loans i recognised orly 40 the exerd ¥ i feceived in cash, Cash recabved on non-acerus! lans wivre there | no doutt reganting full repaymant (na
impatment reccgnised in the form of a specific aliwents) is frst appéad s repayment of (e past dug principat amesnt of the loan and secondly o past due infares! and i,

wrmmummumuwdummWmhmmﬂamm.ammhwnmw
peincipal ameunt of the loan, Imemst income on hese keans i3 recognised anly afier the entive balanes recatvabia s recovered and inest is actualy received,

Loans aoa rpiumesd bo scorusl status when:

«  none of the pindped or aocred inens i pest dte it certain uoepions) ang the Bank expects repayment of the remaining contrachal obigation; or
*  when S loen becomes well secured and in the process of collection.

Loans Modified in 3 Troubled Debt Restructaring ("TDR")

for impaieeny, The Bani emgioys vanous types of conctssions when modiing @ lcan thal & wodld nof othenaise considar whith Rty il atension of repayTent peries, inerest
e recuctions, princel or interest fomranass, frbdarance, and cther actions ipiandid & miimise economic luss and to 3wid forsckeure o repossession of collstessl

Commernial and ndusyial loans modfied in a TOR oien mmmmmmwmmmmmmmm
caliatenal, & SO-DOMDWES, O 3 purmnir is ofen nequested.

Gommerdal modgage and comstiactian loens mocilied in 2 TOR e imveive aatending the mahuily date ot & inienast e lower than the cumment macket rate for new debl with smiar
sk, e substinsing or 23ding & new borower or guarsrke.

Fresidental morgage mmummammMpﬁﬂdammmwmmmum#umwhmmu
ety gate, Inlenast Cominss g S50 0N T Missed payents & a3 a resul, the eliscthve yiekd on the margage nemaing unchanged. As the forbeannce pesiad Lsualy vehiat 20
sigeificant paymen detay They typically & not meset tha reposting Criteria for 8 TOR.

HhmunumamammmmmmmMmmmmmmmmmmas-ngurhtmm.m
anerus status Secision for such 3 loan In 2 Separsti and disting geocess fam the las's TDR. analysis and determinafion, Management considers thit fokoaing in defermining the accrual
et of restnasiuned ioans:

® ﬂmmmmmmwmnumuwmmwmm previciss i, End e Bank’s crech
evaluation shows (he DOrmower's capacty o confinue o perfomn undar the nestruchured bems (both princial and inleest payments], R i Shely i ther Bpprogpriai:
coechsin i o the kean o remsin on aconasl 2 e Eme of Se restrozuring. THs evalustion mus? incude considenition of tha bomowe”s susiaingd hisicical repayment
uamnhpubdmmhﬂummhm“mmm#mwdwmmmuam:em

mioths and woukd involes payments of cash or cash ixuevalents; or

o If the oan was on norcorual stabs Bedors Ths restruciuning, Bul e bank's crecit evalkation Shons $he Domowers Capacity 1o Mee! e mstruckund e, the s would
mmumﬂmmmmamﬂmumwmmm.mmmmwﬁmmm
:mmmmwmﬂmunmmmdmxmhmhmmummmmm
beiore fhi restructining may ba Taien nto acooum.

Lpans that have been modified in 2 TOR ane restared to accrial steius only wihen iroevest and pringipel paymints ae broaght cument % 3 contivioa period of ste monds woder e
it tams, However, periomiance prior 1o the modiication, or signiicant events that oincide wih the medilication, are included i assessing whether the bomowar can mes! be
wwmmmmmmmmnmmawmﬁmmunammmrmmmumum
payroent schadule i uncertaln, e loan remaing on non-acinal Sats.

& foan et 5 rmoeified i 2 TOR e b becorning impaived wil be lef on secrudl statis # fal colisctabiiy in accordance wifh tha rstruCiured terms i &upecied. The Bak works wih
5 oSS B s eyl economic imes Bnd may ener i 8 TOR for ioans that ane i delaul_ or at dsk of defautting, even i foe loan s not impsind,
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(i thousends of Uinted States dallars)

Nete 2: Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
b, Loans (eentinued)

A Ian that had previously been modfied in & TOR and i subsecuestly refirarced undi curtess undsrwriing sandas =t 2 marke! rie Wit i concessionary 1ems & scopumed for 25
& new Jan and s no longer reported a5 & TCR.

Delinguentiss

Th erifice balanee of an Becount i contrachmily delinguent if the minkmyr payment of princigal or interest o not received by the specified duer date. Definquency & reported on ans
that ane 30 days comone past due.

Charge oifs

Thamwmﬁmhmmmummwmmuﬂ;msmﬂmmw“udmm oo Baalsnzie hava
Bt echausied

Commescial and Consumes loars ane either fully of partiaBy chanmes off down 1o the Tair value of coilaisral $acuring (e laans when:

rranagerrent judges tha inan io be unoolectie;

repayment ks expached 1o bé protraclid bevond raasiaie e Mames

the 25562 fs been dissified a5 2 loss by either tha Bank's biemal loan feview procass or thind party appesters; or
tha cusiomer has Bled barnugicy and the ioss bicomes evident owing 1o B lack of sasets of cash fiow,

The oulstanding balance of Comemeecial and Consumer roal st Secuntd inans and residerdal morgapes that an In esess of the estimated propery value, iess oosl 1o s,
chigid off cnoe there & reasenabie assuance thal such axcess cutstandig batanc is nol recovanbla,

Cradi card consumer ioans that ace eontracissly § 0 days past due and other consimer king with & putstanding balange under 5100,000 that are coniraciuady 180 days past cue an

L Allgwance for Credit Losses
Accounting bor Financial instraments - Credi ksses

Suaring on 1 January 2020 the Bank sdepted Accounting Siandands Update (JASUT] 2016-13 Financisl Instruments ~ Credd Lasses (Topéc 325 Acoordingly, from e dete of adeption,
1hes Bank uses 2 cumet] erseciid ot oss medel POECLT which b based an epected ksses. The model used by the Bank up to 31 December J015 10 esimat Credil iDases was
baged on Incumed kessed. Thie CECL madel & appied iy the Bank o the maasueemen of cedi beses on Snandal instnamants #i amorised cost, inclading loan recsivabies and hesio
m.ﬂ.-,-mmdﬁmﬁu.mmtmmumMhmmmmm-ﬂummmmmdm
financial guaranees, and othar similar msinsnds. In e wih Topic 326, the Bank wil present cede losses on avelable-dorsa ['AFS) securifes as 3 valuation, alowanc raihee than
£ 3 dipet wrke-down, Charges 1 expected cred® 1osses 28 recoried tiough Mie respecthe credit ks asowances on the consolidated balance shaeis &5 wil & e jrovision for
et loases (or recovesios) i the condaliinted stetements of aperabions.

The Bank's puichised creditimpaied ("POT) loans outstanding a5 82 1 January 2000 are now classified a5 purchased cred deterdonsted {'PCDY) bans and both the amodiied cost 2ad
i afkwans for Eapeced credi Luses sne disciosed and indixded wih other ren-PCD loans' figures. The Bank will conlious o recoging The amadization of B nonchedt discount, if
Ay, &5 it incommi ke on the yisld of such assals.

The Sank has ot resiated comparaive indsmmation previclsly accsuntid for eeder the incured loss and the PCI modeis. The total adustment resulting man the adoplicn of ths
trthadniogy oo he epening balance of the Bank's accumalsied defict 252 1 January 2020 was 8 neqathve adistmant of §3.047 miicn elting 53 % Bank's loan portfoi.

Linder the CECL moded, the Sank colects and maintsing airibobes e Sy relate 1o s financisl instruments that &re within sonpe of CECL including fawr vaiue of oolatesal, epecied
mwmmummwwmwmmwmm The Bael's meesurement of expband ladses takes inko
stcount Nssarical loss infoemaion and s primarly based on the product of the fesphcive Wstnument's prababily of delaul (PO, s given defaull ('LE0 and exposare ot deliuh
[EALY). Fer AFS securiies, any aldwancs for ereit sces bs based on an mgainrent assacsmant.

Trtmmu-cm-ﬁamwhmmmmmmMmemmmwmwmmmm
a0aingt imerest income revenue.

The Bank maintsing an allowancs for credi losses, which in marsgemands opinion |5 adequls 1o sksor al sstmated crodi-related dosses that are inamed 1 i knding and o
Batance sheet crodi-neiaind amangements 2 the balince $heet dale

anageemen measunis Expatitd cradt lossas on MHMMMm:mmwmmmﬂmmumw.
o fadling thal, on an Ddividusl s,

Fioe gvainbioder sale dobd securifies in an unrealised loss posifion, (her Bank fis! assesses whether i intends to sall, or it is mone Eeedy than g, that i will ba requined i sed the security
bakne rcovery of s amortised cost hasis. 1 ether of the &riteds reganding imend of requEement 1 sl & mel, he securiy’s amorised cost basis 5 wrien down o S8 vaiue thiough
incnees. For debt seceies avaliole-lorssie that do not meet the abrementionsd crer, the Back evakisles wivsther the decing in tair value hag resulled from cred? losses of oiher
tavtews, I making this assessment. munagement considers e satent o which fai valos b less than ame-vised cost, any changes 4 the satihg of the security by 4 rating agancy, and
acverse cordsions spectically retated 19 the sacriy, smong ofes facions, If this assessment ingicates that & credi loss exists, the prssed value of cash foars expectad 1o be colectad
frain the secerly ane chsparag t By amotised coat basis of the securily, ¥ the present vale of cash fiows @xcpected to be coSacied = ess than the amorfised cost basis, @ ool loss
eists Bng an Slowanoe for crest iosses b recomed for the cradt ks, Emited by the amount that the i wikue 3 l2as than he amorised cos! basis. Any impaimmen! that has o been
reconded Shrough an aliownce for credt losses & recognised in other comprebensive income.

Lossis af hinyd anainst tha slowancs when management beSeves e whcoliecibity of an avallabie-lor-sale securlly i confiroed or when @ither of the critena regandng ingn; ot
requirement o sel i mel
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Mates to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continved)
in thousangs of United States coiars)

Mote 2: Significant Acgounting Policies (continued)
i, ARowanca bor Credit Losses (continwed)

This alwsnce Sr credh 1585es on ioans i§ 2 vaiuation sccount that s daducted from the ke’ amorced cos! basis o present e et amount expecisd o b2 (odecied O e ans.
Loans sve chasgad off against he sllwante when manegement beleves the uncollactiblity of a ki balsnce 3 eonfimed, Expecied recoveries cannot axcbed hi aggragese of amounts
previausly changes-of and ixpecied o be chamed-of.

Management estimates the alowancs balance LSty relevent avatabls information, from intermal and edemal souwses; mising 10 past events, curment conditions, and ressonabie and
suppertable forecasts. Historical crudi kess experiencs peovides e basis forthe estimation of axpected crisdl odses. Adjustments o historical loss information ane mads b difigrences
i the cument-3ae speciic ik charpderistics soch s d¥acencas i udenariting pracices, vistage. portiolio mix, delinquency level, term 25 well 55 changes in enviconmental conditions,
such a% changes in mbtrogconconis st and collatersl valles for periods beyond the reasonabie and supportebie forecast period.

The aliwante for credt losses & measuned on a collective pool bass: when Simier fak charsclenicges exist. Tha Bank has identiBied the Toliowing portiod segmenss: Residential
imes 3 probabiity of delaul snd bes-given-dafaull model Yo estimate the alwanca for credit losses. Loans that do nol share risk charpcestshics are evalated on an indhidual basks.
Lnans evakaied indiiduaty ame not included in the collective svaiuation. For Cred cards, Managament 1ses 2 loss 12ie 10 esSmale sepechid cnidit s,

Expecti crait (bases ae estimated over the contractual term of the oans. The oorraciual lerm axciudes polential axtensions, renswals #nd modifications unless management has 2
reasonable expectation 8 the reporting date Bt the extension Or renteal opfions Bchuided in the ongingl conrect wil ocour or that 2 troubled debt restrochuring wil be expeed. Credi
o recehvabies B0 ot have stated matsities, tharofone estabfishing o contractual tamm is performed by piing anadytieal appooximation behavior,

Pﬂnrn‘lJanuaq-m,mmmmm.MMBMMMdWMHeMMEm
Specific Allowances

Speciic afowenoes ar desemingd o7 4N expolkee by exposie basis and mefiect the ssociated esfimatsd Cect loss. The specic aiowance ke codit loss is compuled &3 the
diffenence betamen the recorded invessrec in the i 3nd the present value of expected fulns cash Soas from the inen, The affectve mos of retum on the laan & e far dacountng
nmmm.mmdammumumwwmwmhmm«hmmmm
estimated costs 6 965, on & dissounted basis, in B measurement of Enpsinment i those costs a0 expected 0 mduce e cash Bows avaitibie 10 Moay or ofhantse salsly e lan,
T measuremant of an impaived lpan 18 Jass than the mecorded IRt I e laan, then the Back meoqnises impalment by cresting an alowancs wih & comesponding charge: o
PO Bof Credil lostes.

Ganerz Allowance

The liowases e trecl losses ATt % e remeining pootolo s established Shrough varicus anlyses that estimate the incurmed losa 2 the balance sheet dsie inhesent in S
lending and offbalance shee! credd nefated amangements portiofios. These analyses consalie hastunzal delsll raies, gecgraphic, ndusyy. &nd ofer envicnmental Boom.
IManagament may ato considar ovesall portiolin indicatars ncluding trends in intemaly ik cted gxposures, cash-bashs s, histodcal and Torecasted write-ofls, and a revey of
industry, gecorahic and portfelio concentrations, including tument, developments witin thuse sagrints, In addiion, mansgement coralders the Curent busness stratmgy and Cadt
peanEss, incucing Emit satting and compliance, ol approvals, inee danariiing criteria and loan workout procedures.

mmdmmwmmmmmnmmmmwwmhmmuwm
aoerance for crecR foases alirbuted & these kers i estabished wia a2 process o esfimaies e probabls ostes inhinent and incimed in e portiofo, based Lpen vanous anaiyses.
Hmmmmmmﬁmmuwmmm[mﬂumunmmwwwum.mwm
Joans: rends in wolumes s tem of kans: an evalation of owes! cpdi qualty: the credit process, induding knding poficies and procedures; and BCOnGmis, geograchical, procuct
anet othir ssvannmanal Blo,

| Barslnass Combinations, Goodwil and Intsngibls Assets

Al businsess combinations ase accounied for usig e acuisiion meod, lentliabls ntangitie assets [mesty cusipme: raladonsiips] ane mongrissed saparmely fiom goodeds and are
inisially vaiaed 2 foi valie ysing discourded ash Row calculations and ofher reongrised walustion techigues. (oocwill rpresents the euoist of the (Bl valoe of the consicestion oeid
o the acquisition of a busingess over the i wakue of the el assets aoquned.

Gmdﬂ'nwmhw;mm&mumwlmwmmwmmhwﬂhmMﬂ*lﬂﬁﬁ
unt,h:hﬁthmw&mhwmmwamurcmﬁhmmdﬂmmmsmmm«vu
amplied foir velue of the nootwil. (ther acquimd Intangls assels with folle et 200 amodtised o 3 Siraight e basks over tha estimaled utedd fves, nof exeeding 15 vy
memmmmmnwwhmmﬂmmmwww

k. Premises, Equipmeat and Comparter Software

Land i caied o cost, Buildings, aquiment and computer sefwan, inchuding lessehold Improvements, 20 Gmied & tos! kess sccumulated depeaciation. The Bank generally computes
dapeeciation using the stemvht-ne method over th estmated uhetul e of 20 asset, which is 50 years for esickngs, and 3 10 10 years for other equipment. For masahold improvienents
et Bk b e stemghi-ns method ower the iesser of the remsining term of the lessed facy or th estimated economic B of the imgrovement. The Bank capleises osain comes
muﬁgummwmhMWWMHWMM.MMMIMHhMM.MMM
aonertised on @ staighi-ing: basis over the sobwarny's expected usefl i, which B between 5 and 10 years.

Memmagerant seviews the recovesabliny of e camying amount of premises, eqipment 2nd computer seftwar when indicaliers of Impaimmest g and an impaiment charge is oonded
mhmmammmhmmwwmmmmmhmmumwwdhmnmaam
mdpmhumwmm.nwhmuwmwmmmmnmdmmmm Cehenwise, 2 loss b
recomed. [Fihere s an abandorment o of pramises, equipment snd compiner safwam, the ful caying valse of the assel is retogrised aa 3 lss.
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Butterfield Bank (Caymanj Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{in thousands of Lindad Siates doiars)

Mote 2: Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
I Lesses

I thes normat courss of eparmtion, tha Beri enters into leasing agresments aithr 25 The lessas of the lesser, Starting on 1 Januery 218 (e adoption date of the new kase accouning
guidance Accourng Standands Update [ASLT) 201602 Lesses (Topic 842)), e Bank recognised (prspecthely, wih no adustments lo prior perieds)) ight-ofose amels and isise
mummmumm.mmnmmummmﬁmmmmm b ety that ant sessonably cerlam
peour, discounted using the Bank's incremental baroswing intenss! mia. Right-of-use aesets irk Measured 23 the canying amount of the miakd kst Fshiitien acjusted S peanaid o
Becrued 1356 payments, Unamortised lease ncentive recahed unamorised intia! diect costs and any impéimnent of the right-ohuse ssset.

On 1 January 2079 e Sank elecied the pracical expediant: (1) not 1o reassess whether any expired o misfing contracts 8¢ o contain leases: {2) ot 1o reassess e lease
cigssfication for sny expired orexissing leases and (3) not 10 reaseess inkial disect coss R any exisling leases.

Thi Basnk i giacted  practicad expechant not 1o Separate laase companents inem niveiase comporents for B8 classes of undenying asses.

The Bank sio skcind the practicsl expedest not %9 fecogniss @ right-of-use sset snd & lease Rabiy for leases with a e & inospion of 12 morths o bess, Tnchuding refwad oicne
it ar masonably certain to be sxercised (refemed to as "short lemm leases’).

m. Desivatives

AN derivativis aoe rcoghised on tha Consoldated Batanon Sheets of S fir value, O e date Shal the Back enlers info & defalties chninkdd, £ deignates tha darvatve ae? 3 hadge
ol the faie vakos of & recopnised asset or Eablity (a lair value hadgel: 2 hedge of 4 forecasted iransaction of tha vaniabiity of cash Sows thist ans 5 ba mcebved of paid In conssaction with
2 recognised aeset or Babilky (a cash fiow hadgel: or en nstrument thad is held e trading o noo-hedging pumasas {3 rading o non-hedging instrument).

A imstrurments WiEsed a5 & hedging instrument in @ G valus edge or cash flow hedga must have: oot o mon: underying nolional BMouTs, 0 of & Minirma! fe; il invesiment &nd
prowsion for net settiement in ths cocirae? % et e defintion of a dariatve Fainument.

The changes in fre & valoe for a dervatve that is designated and qualifes & a fak vilue m.mmwnmumummm«wm-mm
1o tha hedged risk, are recorded i eyt year eamings. The changes i ta fair value of o derhativg B & designated and qualtfes as a cash fiow hadge, o the exent that the hedge
ks effectve, are recordad in other compreheirsive ncome: ("OCIT] and the inefiecive portion i mcondini i cummen! year gamings, Tha b, ineffecientss from @ cervalive thal
awercompensates for changts in the hedged cash Sows is soorded in samings. However, the inefiectiveness From 2 decivatine thal under compensals 1 not fecarded 7 eamings. The
changes in the fair valve of @ derviive that & desigrated and qualfias as 5 beeign cunency hedge i idorded in efmer cument year eamings or OCH, depending on whesher e
wh;mmumm;hmwwmmmhmmwummmeanhwm
BT

The Bani fxmally documents afl nelationsnis betesen hedging insinumaents and hedged Rems, a5 wel 35 s risk managesnl obiecive and statagy for undertaiing warious hedge
‘ransactions. Tha poocess inciudes Enidng &3 derhmtives that ane desionated ga i vale, cash fiow, or fomign cumency hedges b specific susets and lisbliSes on Ihe sonsoidena
Salancs shests or specibc fim commiments or incasied transacfions. The Bank alss foemaly asbeseis whither i deruaswes that ase used in hedging Fansscions hine been highly
Mahnﬁ-madmhhmmamm«wmnmwmmuwumw-hﬁnhmwm Fer hose hadge
that ane fenrinatid, hedge desgnations that e eiaced forbe ramoved, iorecasied tRnsactions SE b a0 ager expicied 1 005ur, of e Redpe TRISTONSDGD CRESES 1
b highly efiacive, the hadge acoounting ietmaet desesibed Iy the paragraphs above % o longer appdied and the end-User darvarive i emsined of tranafemed 1 the adng
designafion. For fair vaive hedges, ey changes i the camying value of he hedged bem poor 53 fhe dlanlinuncs emain as part o thas sl of the assel or labity. When a cash Bow
wumﬁm,mmmmm]mnmmtammuwMﬂMWhmmmﬁdmm.

n. Colaernl

The Back pacges assels 23 eolisheral as required for vanioes ansaclions invaiving deposit products and deratg finandal sinements, Assets Szt have been pievigad 2 colizeral,
ird.m'lgmmmhmumwnmﬂ.mwuwmhhﬁﬁmmmhmn hexTs &5 non-predged Bssets
of this 555 bype.

0. Employee Future Benafits

T:..mmammmwnumammmmmwmnmmanmm
mwmmmnﬂnmthunﬂniﬂMhmmﬂWMhhﬂMM:ﬁ

g Share-Based Compensation

Susmerfisid enganas in ity sefmed share-based payment iandacions in respect of senvices recewd! from eligitle employess. The fai valag of the senaces received I measeed by
seharenc i the fair vakse of the shares. or Share options grarsed on the date of the grant. Tha cost of the igicybe servicas mosived I mespact of the sharss. o sham oplons granied
slnmﬂnmmWannwﬂﬁWWMhmmdemedMMwm
period.

g Revenus Recognition

Trust and wmmmbuﬂmhhmammmmmﬁmmnxﬁmmmmﬂmm#

imisiment managament, Svestment achvice and brokeroe senvices. Fees are recognised 25 mwenu over Bk peniod of the relationshin or whish B Bank has rendered il services &
thee cBents and is enitiied 1o collect the fea From the client, 2% kg &3 here am no contingencles assoczated with te fee.

Banking services Sees rimarSy nlude lees for lefiers of credit dnd ofher financial uaminiass, compensating balances, ovtetalt icaites and piter francial senddis-wiaied producis.
a3 wel s el o fees, Lettaes of eredil 2ndl ofher francis? guaranieess fes 0 recognisad as sevenus over B pencd in which the relaied guanintes i outstanding, Credt cird fees
am mummuuummmm«mmmwmmmwmhnmmmmmu
provided. AR other st ank retograed 55 rvenus in e period in whech S senice & proviced.

Formign sechange revarus nouoes Iees 2amed on cumency axchangs ansactions which & meognised when such transacticns occur, &8 well 25 gains and losses fecogrised when
tranaiating financlal insuments held o Sue b cumencies ofher than the ice! funcional curency af the migs of exchangs pitvalng 21 e Balance shael dsls.

L Evdstest Benme inglusias the amoeisation of non-mefundable kan onigination and commiment fees. These fees am necognisad 3 an adjusiaet of yield over the B of the reiaed
ioan. Thase lan origination and commisment fees arm ofise by S retaid dinect cost and only T nes anounes are delamed and amorised intp Raeres! ncome.
11
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{In thousands of United Stafes doliars)

Note 2: Sigrificant Accounting Policies (continued)
q. Rewenue Recognition (continoed)

irfesiist e, inciuding amortisation of premims and discounts, on debl secues for which cash flows ane not considensd unceniain 2 incluced i inerest income in the
Consolidsied Sualemants of Operations. Loars placed on non-aconal S5 ane sooointed for under the cost raoovery misthod, whsehy 8l principsl and interest payments received are
appled &2 & secaction of the amotised cost and Gaenying amounl.

. FairValoes

Faali waluh B Gafingd 35 1he sxciange prcs That would be recenved for an assel of Daid o transher o bty (an ext price] in the prncizal or mast advaniageous masiot for the assst of
KabiSty i an crdery trarsaction Betwesn mackel paricipants on e measursment dads, The Bank determines tha fair vaiues of assets and fabliies bastd of the i vilue Remrtty
which requines an entfy b misimise 18 use of cheenvatie inputs and micimise the use of waibsenabie nouls when measuing lair vaice. The réisant SCCoUNtng SIINCENC cesiries
thoei Jevs of inpuds fal may be used 1o messure fa value, Investments dassifnd &G trading and avadable for sale, and dervative assels snd Eabiles an recognised & the
Corgobiabid Balime Sheets ot kervakie.

Level 1, 2 and 3 valuaticn inputs
ihngmt::hniﬁumﬂumlw.hﬂﬂhim:namhshhudmuhﬂﬂmmdhmwﬁ:mmamm.
Fairvaive boads are considessd Level 1 when besed on unadiested quoted prces in scive markels for identical ssseds.

Fair valse irputs are considensd Level 2 when based inpuls other Ban quoted prices et amm cbesrvabis ko the ssset or Babiliey sither cirectly of indhectly. inclusing inputs in mariats
fhat are not considend 10 be aciive.

Fair vkt inputs ane considerss Level 3 when based on intemaly developed models sing significant uncbservabile assumpions involving management's extimations of nen-tinging bid
quetes keam biokers,

Thee foliowing mathods and assumphices were 1=ad in the delersingtion of tha lalr vaioe of financisd intirements:
Cash snd caah e valents
The camying amount of st and deposts with banks, being shes teem in nature, i desmed ko squats 10 th fair vala.

assh equhatents include unmeshicied e depasits, ceriicates of depdsits dnd teasuly bl with & matieity of less than thee months rom the dese of acquiskion and the camyng vale
2 cost i coridernd 4o approvimets fair valus because they ara shor-temn in nature, bear indenest rabes that appronimate ekl rates, and generally have negigie cradl nsk.

Short beren Investmants

Sl invesiments comprisa restrichd term and démand deposits and unfestricted term deposts and tredsury BES with less than one year ut greater than thike months matunty
Srom the clate of BoouisHon. Tha caerying val af oost is consitensd o approximata fair valie because they ane shodl-demn &= nee, bear inisnest (el It Spproimane marke: e,
and genermlly have regighla cadi riskc.

Inwestments

The {alr vakues $o¢ AFS investments are qunerally sourced Som tind parbes. The bir value of fed Nonine seciifities 5 based upan quoked marke: valies whers available, “svakated
b prices provided by thisd party pricing Senices [ricing sanvices”) whvam quotad market values a7 nol avelabie, er bty redsrencs o Seker or Lnderwsier bid indications where pricing
services 0 ot provide covernge for @ pertculer sacurty. To the exiend the Bank belitvies curment trading conditiond represent disthessed transactions, tha Bank may eled & WSse
imemally miodiels. The pricin Sarvices tysesly (s markel approaches for walualions using primarfy Level 2 inguts (in the vast majorty of vakuatons], o sbme form of
discounted cash fow analysis. Pricing senvices indicate Fat they will ool produce an esEngte of tir value if thess ks objectively wectfisbie information avadabia 2 procuoe 3 Wkaton.
Standard ingas 10 the valsations provided by the pricing sendcas ksted in approximate ofder o priariy Yoz use when ealisble indude: reparied fredes, bencheark yislds, btkeridealer
cuoies, fsyer spreads, huo-Gided mankess. Benchimark secodies. bids, oflers, and relerandt data, The pricng sendces may prioriise npu's difleseatly on any ghven day o any securty.
&nd not &l inputs Tssed are avaiiabla for usa in the evaluation procass on By ghven day for sach Seeurty evelalion. However, the prichyg Strvioiss 2iso monhor market indicaioes and
incdusiry and economic events. When these inpus an nol avalable, Sey idenfily *hucke®s™ of similar secunbies (aflocied by ssset Ciast types. samore, sub-seciors, corfmachual cash
owslsirucsre, and el ety charscteristos) and apply some fomm of matrte or ofer modelied pricing fo detiming &n apopdate securly value which represents ther best esimale
25 10 what & buyer in the marketpisce would pay for & seourty in 8 cumen! sale. It is camman industry pracios to uiisa pricing 3enices 2% @ siurte lor detemining the i vakes o
Bt White the: pricing Senvices ara ki to otain suffcient masiat comuborating information 10 alow them 1o produce 3 valuation al a neporing dete. i addiion, in e majodly of
mm:mmmmm-mMm&kamWMﬂﬂmﬁnmmnmmnmmwm
pricng Senvices. Wil tha Blank receives values for the majonty of e investmant securifies & holds from pricing senioss, it s olimately managements responsbly o determine
whether the valugs received and recorded in the frascis! sieiements ane represeniative of approprizte B vales measurements.

Breisridsster puntations dre used 1o vaiua fied matuties whene prices ane unavalablz fom pricng senioss dus bo fclons Specific o the sedurlly such as Fmited liguidey, lack of
curret trarsactions, o tradas only taking place in privately regotisted travasctions. These ane considansd Lewel 3 valuations, s significant inputs uiilised Dy brokers may be dificlt io
ComboratE with ohsenvabie market data, o sulcient infamaion fegarng the specis Inputs uised by thi breker wis 1ot svallasia lo sppont a Level I classfieation.

For disciosun purposes, investments heid o mabay ane falr valued sing the same methods described above.
Leans

Thwmdmatmuhmwmmmmmhmﬂumwmmmmmﬂm.ndma not significanty diffecant thas
fhair carmying amount. For sribeant foed-rate loan exposunes, i vaie (S estimaed by discounting the faune cash fiows, Lsing the cummen fires 21 which samilss ioans wiuld be mags
1 botwiens with Simar snedt ratngs and foc B same nemaining mairbes, of such leans. Managemaent includes the efiects of spaciic pevisions fhishd agains! bdvidual inans, which
factors in & lom's credt quaily, as wel as accrued inenes! n debsrmning the feir valos of loans.

Accreed infenssd

The casrying ameunts of accnued interest recsvabie and payabie are sssumed 1o approimate it fir values ghen teir shor-em rebioe.

12
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
iin thousand of United Siates dolars)

Note 2: Significant Accounting Pelicies {continued)

r.  Fair Values (continued)

Depasits

T fair valua of fxac-re deposis has besn estimated by discounting the contractuai Gash fives, Lsing marksl nheres! reles offerec l the Baiance sheel date for deposhts of simiar
terms. The camying amount of ceposis with no-tated maturty date i3 deamed o equae 10 thi fair veue.

Drivatives

Diifhvistive conlimess can be aechange tmded or overthe-counter (OTCT) dervative contracs and may include Erward, Swih and aption conTacts ralaing 10 inierest miEs of fomin
currencies. Exchanga-taded derivatives typically &l within Level 1 of the e value Kararchy depanding on whether thiy ane deemad i b actively traced or not. OTC darvatives 2%
alued wsing marke! TANzActions and othar market evidents whenewer poashis, nouding markel-based Nputs 1o models, mode calbration 1o market clearing ransactions. broker or
dealer quatations or aliomative pricng Sountls whare an indesstanding of ha inputs utised in amiving ot the vkations s cbtsined.

Weae mocdels B ised, tha salaction of & particular model to value & OTC deratve depends upon S conmracial Wi 200 Specfic figks inberent i the instrument as wed 25 the
avadabity of pricing infermation in the markel. Thie Bask gensraly uses simiar modets 1o valus simiar nstrments. Velaton models requine & variety of inputs, inCluding contractusl
tams, market prices, yield corves, credi curves, measwres of volstity, prapaymen rates and cormellions of such ingts. For OTC dadvates that trade in lquid mariets, such & genanc
forwasts, interest rate Swvaps and opions, model bputs can generaty be wardfied and modal seiection dos rot imoive signifcant management Jegman.

Ehodwil

The falr valise o reporing units for which goodl i recogrised 3 delemmined when an impalrment assessment is parformed by discounting estimated futune cash fiows ving dscount
raies raflecting vakuation-cise madkes condifions and risks Spacific 1 the reporting (it

5. Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assels

rpaiTent iossis ane ricosnised whin e Camying amount of 8 long-ved ssset pooedds (he sum of the uniscounted cash Soes epecied fom its uss and disposal. The impainment
racogrised s measued 25 The Enount by which e canying amount of the asset sxoieds its tar vale. Lang-ved assels that ane o be depcesd of offesr Bish by aae ara clzssified and
accouned for a5 bisd for use untl e date of duposal or abandonment. Assets Fon méet centain efeds ave ciasaitec 25 held tor sale and an measwred &t the lowar of their canying
amourits o e value, leis estimated costs fo sail,

L Cred®l Related Amangemants

1t T peoemni cose of Business, the Sacl antes Into vanious commiTnens 10 meet the credit requirements of &3 customers. Such commitmants, which ane nol inciuged in the
Consoldaled Batanca Sheets, dudec

. cmmnmammmmmummmhnmdeﬂﬁmwmﬁmﬁmwnm
conddiong

« Standby batinrs of credit, which represent imevocable abligations fo make payments i thisd paries in the svent that the customes is Lnable 1o meat i fnancial sbiigations; and

' Donsmentary and commencial ledars of Cedil primary nelwed t the: impoet of goods into the: Cryman Isiands by cusiomers, which niprisent agreements b Ronour dals
peesented by third parties upes complation of specic scthiles.

mmmnmummmmmwmummw.mmmmbrmmmmuumm
tabls i Hote 12 represend the maxisum payenents the Bank would have b mis should the contracts be fully drwn, the counisrpacty detst, and any coltalerl hald prve 12 B2 ol o
value. A5 many of these amengemets will expine of terminate aithout being dren wpon or ane fully colstemisad, the contrachel aMOUNTS 00 NOR NecEsSAl MpRESent fuiure casn
recuireenenis, Tha Bank doas nof camy any kabiSty for these obigatons.

u, Condolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For e purpsss of the Consaiisated Statsments of Cash Flows, cash oz fom banks include cash 0 hand, cash ams in tha process of coligction, snounts due fom comespondant
mwmmmunmﬂgmummdmmmumnummummwwu

v, Mew Agcoumtisg Propouncements
The Eoliowing acooing divelopments wera saved diring the year ended 31 December 2020 or are acocrting viandands pending sdopbion:

I Januasy 2020, the Financial Accounitng Slandans Boand ['FASE') published ASL 2020401 Glaridying te Iniaraciions between Topic 321 (Invesments-Eqaly Securities), Topk 313
: ‘Wethod and Joint Visréures), nd Topic 815 (Denvatives and Hedging). The smsrdments i This updab goe sfective for tha Sank on facal yeass begiming afler 15
Ciecamber 2030, an intarim petiods within thoss 20l yeaes. The Sank i cumently evakufing the inpaict of adoption of the: standand on 23 consolidatad financal sements.

Iy Marrch 2020 and January 2021, respactively, the FASE publshed ASU 202004 Retanence Raie Retorm ﬂﬂerth#wmm:nm:
Raporting and ASU 202101 Reference Rate Relom (Topic 8431 Stope. The amandments in ASL 202004 provide opional expedients and expepfions Tof 2pphying GAAF 10 Conimads,
Fadging resationships and ofher irarsactions affecind by neference rate relorm # centain oriteda am i and & elfacke for the Bank upon ssulnte (12 Mamh 2020} thiugh 31
Nacember 2027, The amendments ta ASU 2007101 clarkty that cartain cptionsl expedierts 4nd expepfions in Topic B48 for contract modiScations and hedge Bcoounting apply o
mm“mwnmmmmmmwmmuHmhmmmwwmwmusmm
a5 8 resut of et rate redorm. The Bianic may alect in pply the amendments in ASU2021-01 on a ful retraspective batis &5 of any dats from the beginning of an imarim pariod tal
mwumnt?mmx‘&,um:WMMHMMWMIHHMIMHHMMNEMHNMJM
m=uance of a final Update, up 1o the date that Snancal stalriens & Svelable o be lxued, The Bark has placted i early sdopt 250U 202101, These ASUSs have nol had 2 material
impact o the Bank's consoddsted francial strbemants,

I
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Motes to the Consclidated Financial Statements [continued)

{in thousangs of United Siates coflars)

I Chctsbier 2020, tha SASE pubished ASU 2020-08-Codificition enprmvesmanis. 1o Subtopic 3110-20, Recaivables—Horoulundabie Fees and Omer Costs. The amendments in this updase
mmmmmmmmuﬂmmamnmdmwmmwwmmm@mhwmm
eexctivn for e Bank on fiscal years, beginning afee 15 December 20120, and interim periocs withn thise Sscal years. The Sank dok not anticiets 068 ASL to have a materal meact.
In Cictobar 2000, the FASE published 45U 2000-10-Codication Improvements which i inlended % conlom, clanfy, simpify, and'or peovide technical cambctions & o wide vanety of

eodification topics, including moving cerisn presentainn and disciosuns guidante 16 th Sppmpriae codficalion sacfion. The amandments in Sactions B and C of (e update ane effectieg
ﬁtmmmmmwaﬂar15m2m.mmumﬂrwmmmdampﬁmdhmdummhminﬂlm
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{fn thosands of Unied Stafes tialiarg]

Mote 3: Cash Due from Banks

31 December 2020 31 Decamber 18
Unresiricted
Hon-interest baaring
Cash gnct demand depoalss with hanks W7 H253
interest baaring!
Damand depoass wih banks 145,034 165,340
Cash equivaients ) BEM
Subotal - Interest bearing 1044478 Tzt
Tetal cash due from baaks 1,083,885 TET AT

¥ inderpst bearing cash cue bom banks includes cerizin damand deposits with banks as st 31 Diecerber 2020 in the amount of $85.2 mlion (2019 3201 kN, that ans eaming et
at a neghgitie rte,

Nate 4: Short Term Investments

31 December 020 31 Decernber 2048
Affecind by drawing restrictians related bo minimiam resende and
derivative margin requiniments.
Total resfricied short term investments 250

MNote 5 Investments in debd securities
Amortised Cost, Cannyng Amotnt and Falr Vakse
On the consolidated balance sheats, avalisbe for sala (AFS”) vestments S chred af B vl and hald & maely [HTM) iovesiments ans camnd af amorissd cost.

31 Bocamber 3030 Mbecemberd0ts

Gross Gross  Camyag 5ias Gross Canrying
Amortized  wnmalised  uneealised  amownt!  Amofmed  unealsed  wvealsed  amounl)
cost gl baser  Felevi thst L bde Pl vike

Availatle for sale
U5 govemment snd Secernl sgencies 1305784 33533 (AL g ] 58555 9670 18R 506623
Hon-Lk govemmant debl securibes 15 - . 1% 3548 1 - k]
Agsat-backed sbeuries - Srudent baes 1250 . (345) 12545 13,250 - (355} 12351
_ Residential mongage-backed shouriies 1257 7 . 13243 45500 188 (140} HEE
Testal avaltabie for sale 133005 3606 [455)  1AT0MM5 650804 3538 (215 ST

31 Decesmber 2020 31 Decamber 2413
Amortised Gioas Gress Aenortised Gross Goss
costCarrying  unnsalited  ummalsed Fair costCamying  uneesised  yroasised )

value gras foages value fme ] gasns losses  Fairvalue

Hald to maturity ™
_US gowemingn and lederl sgencies 23042 M1 - s9s% o] 19,488 1277} 4350
Total heid to maturity 325,943 4018 . £a0.358 §24.413 19488 [EE)) BEIE

1 e fhes perinds erdad 31 Decambar 3020 and 31 Decesrbar 2019 non-tid, impairments racognisad in ACCUAOCL or held to maturly investmants i equal to SN
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued|
{in thouzands of Unifed Sfafes dodars)

Mote 5: Investments in debt securities (continued)
Investments with enreallsed loss posiSons

The folowing tablees show the fair valve 300 gross unsslsed losses of the Bank's avaliabla for sai and held lo Mty investments with croealsed Insses Bhat are nol deemed to be
cradh impatred, aggmgated by imvestment categoey and lengih of Sme that idividuat securities have been B o continuces unnealived loss position. Debt securites: am calegonised a5
being In & confiecs. loss position for “Less han 12 months” or ™12 month or mone” basad on M paint s Gme that the fair value decaned below the C0m hass

3 December 2020 Less than 12 moslhs 12 months or more
Gress Gross Total gross
Fair umreaised Fair nrealised Toasl mnelied
waliie bosses value losses air wisiue lnsses
Available for sale
UE gevarmanans and haders| agances. 20488 (124} % raf} Hra [151)
Hon-LS govemnmant debl securties 15 . - . 15 -
Asss backed sansties - Student ans . . 12045 345 12545 (345}
Total availsble for sale securities with onmaled losses 28,501 {124 13481 372} 42562 o]
Held fo maturity
Total haid 1 socurithes with unresfived losses . . - -
31 Dacember H118 Lea than 12 months 1.2 manths or man
Groas Gopss. Tokal gross
Fak unmeied Fair uneeafsed Total nregEsed
il logsas Al osses G vave It
Fyaiabie for xle
LE5 poremrmrinent and hecheral Srencies £5.107 460} 125749 (1,153) 210,885 {1813
Keon-US govemment debt securiies 202 - - - s -
Assel-backed securties - Siudent loans - - 12851 (359 1288 5
Resifential mongace backed seoutes : . 2531 {140] 28531 i140)
Tkl anvaicabli for salé soourites with uoveained sses 85,309 [ 167,171 {1682} 252.680 {2.152)
Held o sahiy
1S govemment and feders agendes . - 464N {277) 45,111 @
Ttz held o gacuriies with unrealised losses . 5 #5411 {27 45811 LM

The Bank does not belevs hat e AFS dabt seanies that wise i & wrosalesd bss polion a5 of 31 Decembar 2000 comprising 7 secunties represanting 3.11% of the AFS portfolios’
carmying value (2015: 70 and 26.09%), represent coodi losses. Total gooes unnaaibed AR5 losses were 1.16% of T fair vailos of the afecied sacurities {201 0.85%).

The Bank's HTH dab! sacurifies v comprised of LIS novernment and ledersd sqencies secirtias and have b 280 credt loes assumpticn undar e CECL model, Thene wie £ HTM
deit sacurifes that wens in an croaskesd loss posion 5 of 31 Desambar 2020 {201%: 3 securifies representing 5.02% of the HTM perssfes’ camying value). Total gross unreaised HTM
tosses were 050% of the fair valus of afeciod Shcurties ot 11 December 2018,

Management toss not interd Io sell and i is ey that ragerenl will nol be required to sell the securiies priot i Teir arlicinated recovery, Unealised losses wive 22oabie
peimmanily i changes in market inferest rates, ralative 10 when i inwestient Securis wire purchasad, 2nd not dis o3 decrease in the ced qualty of the invesimant securites. The
s conting bo make timaly principal gnd Iierast payments on T seourises. The flowing desciibes the procksses for ientfing credd impaimment in securly fypes wih The mast
significant unreaised ases a8 shown in he preceding tables.

Managarmint bebieves that ol the US gevernment and fedsrl agencies sacurifies do mol hini 2oy cradit insses, ghven the explict and implcl guaranises provided by the US fedesal
RNt

Management belisves Tt all tha NoeeUS govemnmeont debt securities do nol have any cradi losses. given the xpicit guamnies provided by the i3sung govemmant

lewestmenis in Asselbacked securitics - Studnt koans s compesed primanily of securies colateralisad by Faderal Faenily Ecucation Loan Program bans ['FFELP lnans™), FFELP
leans Bersfit om 3 US federsl govermment guasanisg of ot Seadt 57% of cefaubed principai and aoonued interest with addional credi suppod provied in the form of e
coflaternsation, suhondination and excess spread, which coliechvsly total i1 excess of 100%: Accomlingly. the vl meiodty of FFELP joan-backed securlies ane ol axpised
Seadifonal consumer cradit risk.

Bone of the investments b Residential morigage-backed securiies wis in &0 nosalsed loes position st 31 Decamber 2020 (2015: 4).

16
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)
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Mate 5: Investmants in dedt securities (continued)
Invastment maloities

The folowing 1=t presants the mmaking lanm fo contractual maturty of the Bank's seowites. The actual maturities may difier a5 cerain secunites offer peapayment aptions i e
DOMOWRS.

31 Dacambar 2020 Raraining term o ity
Mo apecific
Within Jtoi2 1o s St Cwer of siagle Casmying
3 rrsrlivg: manths yoars aarg 10 yuars maturity amoiant
Mraiable Tor sale
S govemment and fedemi agencies ' . . - . 1,344 212 1344012
Non-L15 powermmment debt Socurities 15 - . . . . 5
Aosplbshed secunites - Sudent oang - . . . . 12343 12845
Residesial morgage-backed sacaries . . . . . 13,243 13,243
Tatal availabde for sale 15 . . = . 1,370,400 13M0415
Held to mirturity
U gevemment and federal agencies s . . - - 543 E25.043
Total held ta maturity secusithes - - - - - B35.043
Total investments 15 - - . . 219643 2195358
Tetal by cumancy
UE dollars 15 . . . . 2,185343 2,186 358
Total invesiments 15 - . . - 2196 M2 2,186,358
31 Dacarber 219 Remaining tem jo marturily
No spacif of
Within il 108 S 10 Croar single Caemying
3 manths reonihs YIS yEars 1 years maturity ot
Availabie for sale
WS gowernmisnt and bederal agenciea - - - - . Bi6 623 06623
Non-US govemmant deb seosiies - . ne kg - - 147
Assal-backed securifes - Sudent loans . - - - . 12841 12881
Residertial movigage-backed seouriies . - . . : 44,648 A58
Total avaiabie for sals - - fruir] iy - 564,182 257581
el 1 maturity
LS gov and federal agencies - - - : = SMAT GNAIS
Total hald 't mahurty sbcuries - B = ~ - 524421 LR
Totz! investments . - 202 187 . 1588585 18204
Tokal by curmency
S dollary - - 202 11 . 1888585 1892014
Taolad investments - - 202 3HT . 1,855 585 1582014

Piedgad Investments

The Bank pledges cartaln US govemment and federl agercies investmen] S60aiies i furfuisr stun: ihe Bank's Bsued cusiomer depost products. Tha secured party does not have the:
right ta s&il oF repiadga the collateral

1 Decaeber 2020 31 Decaminer 2019
Amortized Amorised

Fladged bveslmenls eost Fair valus oot Fairvakuss

Fuaiiable for sake Ik el 250 e

Held o maurly 1 i 3173 AT

17
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Mote 5: fnvestments in debt securities (continued)
Sale Procesds asd Realised Gains and Losses of 8F5 Securiies

31 Decersher 2620 31 Docerbar 2079
Sale  Grossrealised  Gross realised: Sake Gross  Gooss reaksec
AFS gecurilies scid pitastsds gaing resgesd iy
U5 govememant e faders] agenches 143,834 442 {285 - -
Non-US grvemment deil seauiles 3,265 04 - . - .
Corpocass detd sacuries % . £ 55355 48 (125
Commercal mongage-backed securities . . - 55 gl st -
Het realised gaing [losses)
recogrised in net income 147,189 845 fread 111,247 T 1123

Mote &: Loans and Paricipations Recaivable

The pfincioal means of securing reskdential moripages, peesanal, chedR cand and business loang oe enillierants (var S550% 000 Guaranises. Mongage \oans BTe generaly epayatie
over pariods of b0 ity fve years and personal and business icans &e generally repayatie over terms ot excheding twenty years, Government i0ans ana repayabl over & varity of
terms which ase indiiduatly negotiled, Amounss swing on ciedil £ards ane fevoling and typlcally a minimm amount B due within 30 days trom: bing. The effecire yield on Wil ke
25231 December 2020 is 3.95% (2015 4.92%). The intenest recehable on iotal loans s at 31 Decembar 2020 is $1.2 milon (2018: §1.7 milion]. The Inerest receivatle i indudied 7
Agcrund inberes! and cihis aasets On The consclideted balance sheets and i exchuded from 34 lan smourds dsciesad by fhis nota.

Loans' Crodi Cuality

The lour credi gty clasiicetions set aut in the folwing 1abis 2ne deined below and destribe the tredk gway of tha Bank's lending petinhn. These cassifcations each encompats
& ranga of mome gramular intemil oedi rting grades. mmmmnmw_nmmmmwumummmaaws
rsicfonal and group Credit Comitioss. Tha bomowers Snansial eaabon i docemented af kan crgination #nd maintained periedicady theraalier at a frequency which tan be up
roirbiy 400 oextain lcans, The loans’ performing siatus, 35 wed @5 curmen? economss nends, an confinuotsly monkiored, The: Bank's jurisdicional and Group Credi Comenitinds médt 50 @
enorstty basis. The Barly aisn has 8 Group Provisians and Impainants Comemitiee which i rsponsibie for appoving Signiices; panvisiong and ciber impaimmant charges.

A pass kan zhall mean a loan that 5 sxpocied to be repaid 5 sgeeed. A lan i classiied ac pass whaes the Sank is not expected 1o tce repayment aficuiies beciuse The preses g
prosected cash fows are sufficlent 1o repay T didd nd Sre seperytient schadile Bs estabished by the agreement is being fofvwed.

A special menticn loan shall mean a koan under clse monfiorieg by The Bank's management on af st & guastery basia Loans in this caiegory ane cumently protecied and sl
perlooming, bt ane potentially waak And jresent an undue chedk risk sxposure, but not o the point of leititying 2 clsssfieation of substandard.

& substandand loan shall mean & kan wiese evident wrrelabiSly makes repayment doultil and there i 2 threat of ioss 1o the Bank uriless the unelabillty is averiad. Loans in s
ealegory are under clese mondorning by To Bank's maragement on at least 2 quariary basis.

A non-accnua] loan shal mean either massgement i of th ginion full payment of principal or inbenest i in doubl or when principal or et 5 30 S2ys peas! e and for rasidentisl
rnavigace idnd which 2m nal wel secimad and in e process of colection. Loans in this catgony ane undier cloge monliceing by the Bani's managemen on 3 least a quanedy bass.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financizl Statements [confinued)
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Mote &: Loans and Parficipations Reteivable (continued)

Thra table betow presents informalion skt the cedi! gualy of the Banks loan portfole.

Tokai Allovance
| amortised or axpacted Total net
31 Decamber 2020 Pass Menlion  Sohstisdard  Mon- stenusl post  craditlosses laang
Commescial loans
Banks ETR | 4 . . M . AT
Govemmants 11T428 = - - Wr s {43 416,182
Coersmerrial pod industrial B, TE 305 801 - 55538 (245} 65,592
Commertil overdoais 2.2a7 - - 2H7 ) 2,253
Tolal camenercia] iaans LT s 901 214R {1.923) 218,308
Commercial read estate ans
Commenial mongage 164,751 13,085 k-] 178,254 a4 178,950
Consrutton 4950 A7 . 44520 {1,287} 43583
Total commercial real estate losns 168,73 52055 35 FrETT] 11,351) @
Congumes loans
Automoide francng 7888 - - T8 ] TRTT
Crext casd 20,282 - 52 {420} 19,553
Dreesdmfls 1,520 - 1,500 [44) 1478
Dther consumer! priphy - T Eeigt] [186) 33533
Tertal consumer loans [=Fal] . T. 837 [544) 62,543
Residential mortgage baans E14407 217 6372 1,112 B2 [5£) 621,453
Total gross recarded bans 1,455,531 53477 7,861 1118 1,137 B4k {518 1424038
1memmmmmmmummmmanﬁmﬁmmwmnm«mw
Evaiizmtion of gross loans far
Impaireant
Tots!  Genscxland
Special Hon-  amonised speciic  Tominet  Indvikaly | Coliechesly
11 Decamber g Pags Manbon Substangard acena? ol L ] _oans  evikebed  evBRamd
Gmlw oans
Banis Bam “ . Bam 33,501 B
Govemmants 127,509 - . - 127 508 . 127 509 - 1550
Cammenal and Eéustrial B4.685 462 e # 5058 (284) 85402 w5 85137
Commenial owadrals. 5475 - - - 5ATS - SATS - 5475
Tota commencial loans 30750 &5l 38 E] FErRL IreH] 2T 268 Feil o)
Commencal rasl esiate
logrs
Commanial morgega 158522 19,057 als . 173,304 () 17044 Ll 178578
Consinscion 57,508 - - - 57,509 - 57,508 - 57508
Tkl paenmencal real 4 3%
arlyatein i 19,257 425 234,813 [250) 115,553 23 ki
mmu;m 55 1.765 (14} 75 T.768
& Enansing 7.7 )
Criedil eand H25 L L 148 208 - 6,253
Cverdraks. 343 . 1041 %) s a 3083
Okher consumer! IATE 2 30174 {a8) WM 7 30,187
Totml consner kans GIFEE) z . : 7255 ] 7 GFF]
Resigentsl mongage ians 561511 - Ll 1532 558,550 1825} 8,155 BT S5.063
Total reenrdad bans 1,075,325 2421 13m0 185 105778 (1088 110450 T BT B
_ﬁgmm e ol COMmpries 52,0 maon of cash-secuTed lending and §25.9 mision of knding skcured by builtings in constuciion or cther coftiersl

* Excludes purchased cradR-getenorsbed |oans
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman} Limited
Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continved)
{in thousnds of United States doflars)

Mote B: Leans and Participations Receivable [continued)
Sigapd cn the most recen analysis parormed, Bie amortisad cost of loans by year of orgination and cradi qualty indicator i 83 Sl

Total emortised
34 December 2020 Pats  Special Menfion Substandand Hon- accnul £ost
Loans by ongination
Emh T 1,102 5087 - ] 206,192
201G 33 B4G i . 4 Era e
Hig 132,114 35,134 24z - 168080
amr 188 255 13 138 . 100,638
vy - 112,112 - . . EiFAGE
Price T3 130 T.288 1,012 154,828
Overdrafis and eredit cards 24,108 ~ ¥ - 24008
Total smostised cost 1,065,501 S53IATT 7561 1,119 1,187 348

Age analysis of past dus loeng [scloding nom-accrual baans)

Th fgliiing table summarises e pist dus siafus of The koans, The agty of pas dus ameines ane Satenmined based on. the commactual defnguency $izius of payments under the ioan
and this aging may b atiecled by the Sming of the iagt business cay at pariod end, Lo iess han 30 days past due an incloded in Current.

30 =-5 0 days or Totat parst Tortad amnortised
31 Dwcesnbar 2020 days 80 - 59 days mee dise laans Tkl Camest cost
Comenercial lans
Banics - . - - AN uam
. ] . ; 17,025 117025
Commercial and mkusirial 5] - . 0 BSA2T 5935
Commanial overieds - - . - AT 27
Tatal commarcial loans 9 . - 05 18,320 PIRATS
Commestial real estate loans
Commassial momzace . . . - 178,254 175,254
Corstusion - - . - 450 44BN
Tatal commercial real estate loans - - . - T s
Consumer lgars .
Auterbily Enancing . - . . 1585 T,686
(e cand - a . E 0,202 ik )
Cwpndrats . . F . 150 1,521
Othed COnSUTHT - - T T _EE iyl
Total congumer bans . - T 1 3.1 saaT
Residential martgage lasng 1332 M3 1814 355% A15,450 GIL1E
Total amortisad cost 1441 413 1,321 375 1124073 1527548

194/240



EDINETCI I
I o o o o e =00
O000oOoOddooooooooOoOaOon
Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{in thausande of Unfted States dollars)

Wote 6: Loans and Participations Receivable {continued)

-5 deysor  Toal past doe Total amcrised

31 Decamber 2048 _ s B0 - 8% days [ loans Tokal Cument oSt
Correireal ians

Banks. . = - - = 330

Govemments . - - . 12750 137 508

Coemencial and ndustrial . - - . 5605 66,095

Commescal v - - . [ 5475 L
Tiotal commercial knans - - . - 23218 232,181
Commercal real esiafe lnans

Commensl matgage &45 - - 445 178,854 178,304

Canstrustisn . 3 & - %_ 57.508
Total commerciai real estate loars 45 . - 445 6813
Consamee loars

Aol francng - - - - 1758 T

Cresst g - Fi ¥ 26253

Crvardmifis . = = - 1042 3083

Cither congumes . 16 . 16 58 HATE
Tl congurnes koang - 1 & 18 51218 £7.235
PRressicheniial marigage logns 246 1,455 L1485 5,758 ek 569 550
Total srecmed o3t 30 1482 2. 148 6,718 10a8080 1905770

Chikngea in Allowences for Credit Losses

Tt inciase in e provision & credt losses duig B year ended 31 December 2020 wars primariy afictaie 1o changes in magrecononiic Baclors, such o5 GOP frecasty, o
changes in the cred ralings of same commarnal customers. A2 per the Sani’s scoounfing policy, 25 disciosed in Note 2, the Bank contiwousty collects and maintains afries relned i
Fnancial Mlrmonts witin the 508 of CECL, hlsting cument condifions, snd rasonabka and supportable sssenpions sbagl ik Boonomie condions.

Logn sBowances 31 December 2020
Gommencial Risidential
Eomemercial reai eadode Consymer moftgage  Toisl
Aligwances at beginning of pariad 294 260 I 425 1090
Cumylatvg efiect from changa in secounting polcy (Hole 2) 1,268 1195 604 (20 3T
Provision increase (decmase) sy [104) 25) 5 1433)
Recoveries of previous wile-alis g - =3 16 wr
Crange-olfs 18} - 14 roy] L]
Other # - {1} ph:] 188
ASowances for expectad credit losses ot end of year LR 1351 L] L) 3419
Loan aliwancas 31 Depermber 2093
Commescial Aasidertial
Commesdial il ety Conmgrer T Total
Alowances at begning of period 2375 B45 115 538 156,
Prvislon {relased)naomed during the perod {1,715} {285} % 112 {1,883}
Recoverias. 2 . 1z v ] kL]
Grame-offs {378) ] _ et} 1 i)
Gl £nd spacie 20owanoes a: end of pariod 4 0 REE] 435 1,380
Aliwanses 8 end of pariod: individually evaluated fef imoaien] : . . 181 181
Aliowarses 3 &0 ol pariod: colleclively evaluaied for ingarment Fel 20 11 44 ]
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Butterfield Bank {Gayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Mote B: Loans and Participations Receivable (continued)

Golizterak-dependent loans

Management idenlfied that the repayment of Sersain commercial and consumer mengage Kans ks expected to be provided substantialy (hoough e cperation or the sake of the colaten
piicioed to ha Bank ("coliateri-dependent loans"L The Back Deldves that for the vast majorty of loans identified a3 coliblerai-dependict, the seie of the coflateral will be sulficient 1
fually rairmibsiirae thie laees marrying Smount

Lean Dalerral Program |,

I response & thie COVID13 pendemic, efectve | Aprl 2020 the Bank Implamented a residentil mongage and corsumer kan delet program for quaified bomowens pnger which
principel and inferest piyenEnes on perknring loang werm muicmatically defarmed for three months from 1 Al 2020 o 30 June 2020 and The loan tonm exenged. Borbwess hid the
apfion 4o rotify the Bank if they penlamed ba confinue with negular, schodulad pavmants L&, to cptout. Commemal customers had the opfion to pay inenst enly &1 their monihly lean
pryments wifh ng penaities, Loars thel meet i requisaments for delral under the progrms sre not considesed TORS or pas! due as e bompwers wins Sl o0 their peyments and
Wwefe Nt expeniencng fnandal dfcuty 51 ha dme of these modiScations. In gcdidion, he Bank piso intmduced dedermals on oredit caxd payments S May and kme. The Rank
schapquily eended the resicentis! morizage and peesoest loan deferral program for 2 furfer thrse months from 1 Jely 2000 10 30 September 2020, however borDwes had 1o noty
the Basre of thelr intention 1o deler principal and biecest payments.

NonPecfarming Lodns

During thit year andid 31 Dacembar 2020, ra interest was Ecognised on non-accrual inans, Non-pertorming loans & 1 December 20E0 indude PO loars, which have 2 been on nen-
aecrepl sistus sihes their saquisiion. The balences & 37 December 243 have nol been mstaled o inchide ™ §1.8 milion amortised cost of PCD lcans a5 al that date. Mo cdi
detpricraned loans wen purchased duling e year. A% lnans which are dafined as past due 50 days and ane will secured conlinue 10 scorue interest

Hon-Perfarming Leans
31 Dacamber 2020 31 Docembar 2013
Nen-atgrual Mom-accrual  Accrying loans Total non- Non-accnal Non-potrual  Acsneng ioens Total nor-
foans withan  loans withoat past dee 58 performing  keswithan  eswihodian  padove®d perfoming
allowance  an alkvwance axys laang Allcwares alowano dms Ipans

Commerclal leans
Comnmarcial and indusirial - . . . . 3 A 3
Total commercial loans - - . . : Hn w ]

Commercial real eslate

Consusmes lnang
Crede cands. . = - . - - -
Crher consumer 7 . ; 7 . ’ .
Totel condumer loans 7 . . T - - -

Residential momgage 4,080 32 1528 i 1440 182
Todal near-perfoming 1087 32 1455 28 1440 253

226
=

Loans Modified ina TOR

Thes Bark did ot modily any ke during the years endsd 31 Cecember 2020 &nd 2049 that would b considered @ TDR, As al.31 December 2030, the Bank has Ki (2015 NI} beng
thatwene modied in 2 TR within the kst 12 mornths and subseguectly detuted (Le. 83 dxys or more past due following & modification].

3 December 2020 31 Degember 218
TORs cutstanding Aooral  Weoscnal Atel  Wovacow
Cornmercial loans 901 - 538
Cornmercial epl estale loans 08 . s .
Residantal loans 3498 16T W2
Totad loans medified in a TOR 478 4430 122

196/240



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Motes o the Consolidated Financial Statements {continved)
firy thowsandts of Linifed STates dotiars)

Mote T: Credit Risk Concentrations

Gercemmtians of credk risk in the lending and of-balance sheel credt related amangements poriiofios are whvn & number of cusiomens are engaged in simiar business activilies, 1%
in the same geagraphic region, o when they harve similar eoonamic aiures thal would cause their 20ty 10 maet torrach=)l cbigations I e smstaty affecied by changes in soccoic
condiions. The Bank recuiary monkom various segments of 25 créd rigk portioln 1o ssess potential concaniraions of risks and 10 citain colaleral when deemed nacessary. In B
Blank's eomeneszial portiotie, sk concentrafions are primaely evalustd by geogephis fegen. In the consumer portialo, concentslicns A peirdely evaluted by products. Credit
apﬁ:mmmwmmmﬂanﬂﬂmhmmummWMMMHMMdm
e exckced bom the Bhies baloes,

T foficvaing bl surTmanises the credit exposure of the Sank by geograghic negion, The eipasure Emounts dsciosad befow o ot include Somund interst, long-term Ruesimans,
o asopl &nd olher EabiiSes and am gross of aliowances for oredd insses and geose of coliateral held. The credit risit concentration for Tvestments is disclosed in Note &
Ieresiments.

31 December 2030 31 Docemoe: 2019

Cashand Cashand

cash cash

wquivalents Uiy

ang shea- and shor-
term Off-batance: Teital credit tom Ofbaipsim  Toinl crede
Geagraghic remian Ievestrenits Loans. Shiest €xpeanne Ervesimants Loans shiesl Sxpose
Austraka 205,189 - - 05468 156,443 . - 156,443
Sarmads 176,214 171,965 49 350,522 LIS 154808 T 180,118
Canaca 300,306 - . Eok ) ] - . 382,550
Cayman isiangs. 25,480 903,597 396,655 1xm.052 238 R 2 1118584
Guemsey . 19,862 11,304 1,25 . 34101 2 1w
butand 63,135 - - 63,155 . - . .
Jagan - - - - 11,548 - . 115848
dersy - . AT 34,11 . . . -
Ko Zesiand el . B 3947 5732 - . 5711
Swkzariand . - - - 3483 - - 3483
The: B3harmas - 1250 - 102 - 12858 - 12853
United Kingdim 14,065 - - 14,086 5ok o] - - 69328
Uziind Sistes 2,564 : : Ve 001 - 94,031
Totsl gross expasure 1,083,855 1,127,588 444659 255G TELATT 1105558 210451 2073408

At 31 Ditirmber 2000, 18.65% of ot cach and cash equivalents waos placod with 3 single Canadian (3013: 33.01% and singla Canadian] Fnancial instiution with an 547 ming of A1
(2018: A-1). Addonally, & 31 December 2030 18.45% (219 1873 of total cish aind Sish equivalancs were placed with a sing bt Ausstraiiaen Firgncial Insiuton with an 58P rating of
A+ {2015 A14), AL3T December 2020, 5 73% {2019: 0.00%) of the it cash and cash equivalents and shiri-erm Nestmants wes held in US Treasury Blis.

Note 8: Premises, Equipment and Computer Software

31 December 2020 31 Decembir 2019

Beeumyliated Yt carrying Apcumilanest Tk camiing
Category Cost depreciation amoost _Cost _ dmreciiter amourt
Larg 340 1445 3484 g
Buiidings 653 {13,5489) Eelc ! 45,265 (12381} ok
Equipment 435 3 1me 1878 (2287 552
hardhwans and Sofwan i use 45545 R 5553 44,533 [35,754) 8748
Tetal 100,02 [56.584) 43433 el (51.£58) 45404
31 Deceamber 37 Decernyer
@t 20

Depreciztion
Bulidings [inchuded i propesty expense) 1200 1057
Equigmnens (induded in property expenss] Faii] )
Crammer hamdwam and sofwarne (included in tschediony & commuynications expanse) 4,938 4,788
Total depreciation charged to non-Enterest expense 6,425 5%
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statemants (continued)
i theusanass af Uniled Stafes dollars)

Note 8: intangible Assats

Goodwill 31 Decamber 2020 31 Dacermiber 2012
Goodwll 551 551
Ealance at end of year 551 351

Customer relationshin intangibie assets 31 December 2020 31 Degesnibar 2019 i

Kl

Accumaulated  Accuemulated canmying Acoumidated ﬁmmﬂ.md Caying

Cost imgairment __amortisation amaint Coat impaimment _ amaodisafion  amount

Customer relationships 16,597 = [5.558) 10,935 16517 = [4,461) 12088

Customar relatiorships ane iniially vaiued based on the present value of net cash fiows expected 10 be derived sokely from the recuring customer base axissng as a1 the daie of
anquisSon. Customes relationship intangble assals may o may not arkse froen contracts. Thise went it iviangible assat impairmes] losses recogrised for the year ended 11 December
H} (2015 M), There were na aoquistons of customer intang ibie assets dutng e year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: NI}, During 2020, the amortisation expenst amdunted 1
$1.1 milion (2019; $1.1 millon). The estimated aggrogaie amortisation sxpanss in fotal for the next S years [wvdl 31 Desamber 2025) s $5.5 miion.

Motz 10: Gustomer Deposits

31 Decesnber 2020 31 December 2019
Demand deposits
Desmand deposis - Nondnieees bidring 1,043,030 TE2OTY
Desriznd claposis - Inlerest bearing 2,534,200 221340
Sub-tatal - demand deposits 3197723 2595319
Term deposits having a denamination of less than $100 thousand
Tarm deposts matufing within sk monts 13058 22085
Term deposts maturing betwsen 5 i webw monds. £31 5023
Tarm ceposis maturing afier welve mocths Fall 508
Sub-intal - term deposits having a denamination of less
than $100 thawsand .58 715
Tesm deposis having a denomiration of $100 thowsand or more
Term depodits maturing within $ix months 431 510 408,438
Term deapoits maturing between sic 1o teehe monihs 11,742 4
Term deposits maturing afier twelive months 4T B
Subetotal - term deposits having a denomination of
£100 thousand ar mare SuMan 452552
Total - term deposits’ 531,602 473 847
Total 4,108,841 1475166
" As gt 31 December 2020, 50.3 milion (2015 50.2 milion] of $e teem deposits bear an interest rate of %,
The efiecthn: yisld on interest bearing deposis 20 31 Dectmber 2000 was 0.06% (2019 0.25%),
Note 11: Employee Future Benefits
31 Decamber 2020 31 Deceamber 2013
Annual bengfit expense
Defined contribution expense 1,518 1,543
Total 1533 1553
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continwed)
(i thotzsands of Unted Stafes dollars)

Mote 12: Credit Related Amrangements and Commitments

The Bani enters ints contraciual coammliments o axiend cradk, nommally with fixad expiration daes of armination cleuses, at speciied rates and for speciic purposes. Substactially 8
of the Bank's commitmen's 1o exend oedh an Corangen! Lpon customers makssning specic credt sandaeds at the tme of oan funding, Managemant Jssesies T e sk
ssociaed witf certain comTitmants b exdind credi i Getermining the level of the aliowance for possible loan losses.

The $alwing bl presents $ha unfundad lagaily binding commitments 10 axtend credit wih contractusl amounts fepisenting Credi Tk 2 foliows:

1 Becambar 2020 31 Decamber 2015
Commiments 10 axbend credd 266,000 63443
Dommentary md onmercal e of cedt 43,105 155
Total 259,108 §5.357

Crodit Related Armangements

Standby lefers of credit and lesiers of guarashes ank ssued ot the request of a Bank custormar in crder 1o Setune e ostomer's payment of perfemanca coligations to & T party.
Thesa guarriees represent an imevocabie chiigation of the Bank 1 pey T third pany beneficiary upon peesantation of e guansntes and satislacion of the documentary requremants
sipuliried thaei, withid Fvestgation a8 B the validity of the benefician’s daim against the austrsr. Gossesly, the tam of the standby letters of oredit does not exceed one v,
while the 1 of the legess of guoraniss does ol exceed four years. The types 2nd amounts of coliateral security held by the Bank for thése standby leters of cradit and lstiess ¢
guarsties is penesly represented by deposits with (he Bank ora cidkine over esaets held in mutual funds.

Thia Banic consigers the ey coliscied in connecticn with the msusnce of atandby leter of credit and letess of guaramiee fo be representaii of the B vaiue of its ohiigaton
undertiun in msuny the guasames. In ccordance wih applicable secouning standends misted I guaranices, e Bank defrs foes colecied B commection with (he: isnce ol
standiy letiers of cadi and letiers of guarames. Thir fes s Then recognised in incorse proportionatety over the Ble of the edi sgreemens.

T deidonriony abde posmsnts tha oustanding fnancial pusanises wih contraciusl amounts nepresenting cned risk as folms:

21 December 2020 1 Decerier 2019
Geoss  Collaterl Net Grss Colgteral Mt
Standly lethers of oedd 153,166 153,165 - 143801 143EN -
Leses of mamanise 2,388 2338 . 153 145
To Wesst st T wmme  wsow

Cokateral Is shown &t esdimated markat value less seing cost, Where cssh & the colfateral, 548 & shoan §ross inskaling acerusd income,

# Quarsried & & coniract et contingently reguines the guaramion i make payments 10 a tind party based on (i) changes in & undedying inteset rate, foraign excfange e of other
vt induding i GCCUMENcS of MON-Gotumencs of an event, that is reialed o 8n axsat, Babaly or aquity Socurity held By the guarasised partr, (i) an indemnification peovided 1o S
thisd parmy wilh the chamoenatss sled above, (6] anothar sy’ faluns to pesform under an abbgating sgesemiert, of () snother entiy's file 10 parionn retried 1 B indebiedness.
A5 31 Dacenber 2020 e quaraniess that the Bank peovidad in fis customens and other Bhind parfies weee stendoy letiers of cedit and labiprs of guaranies with 3 minsTas) pobintisl
armount of futune payments of $90.7 mibon (2019: $54.7 mion). The mmying value of thess amowrts on T 31 Dessmber 2000 Cormosdalad Satance Sheet were SN (2015 ).

T Bianik has a acity by ane of s custodians, whenby the Bank may ofer up 1 $200 milon of standby lofers of ored? o &s csiomens on & fully secuned basls. Under the stardas
terms of the faciity, the custodien has the ght 1o set=oH against securities heid of 170% of the wiiised fackty. At 51 Desember 2020, $152.2 milicn (2018: $143.4 m3Sos) of siandby
letiers of cradit were issved under this Bacilty,

Legsl Procesdings

Theste are o rursber of sctions and Bgal procsedings pending against the Bank and 5 subsidisies which anse in the nomai course of is busness. Managimesr, aRer eviewing &
actions and procebdngs, pining Bosnst o7 Bwling the Bank and its sunsifiaries, considens $hat the rssiution of Swse matiers would not be matedai i e conselined fnancsl
‘position of the Bank.
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Mote 13: Leases
The Bank eniers i opersting lease agreaments elther 25 the lessee of the lessor, prmary for office and parking spaces. The temms of e existing eeses, ncluding renewal oztions

that ane neasanably cere 1 be exercsed, exiend up 1o te year 2023, Cadain kase myments will b2 sdisted during the related leases’ term based on mdvements i he relpvan)
COASuE pride kL

Yoy pnaded 11 Year ended 31
Laane Costs December 220 Deszamber Hi18
Cperating lesss costs 147 s
Shociem leve costy 125 I
Total leage cost 1,196 1Lt
Crtteer Enfoumnation for the pericd
Fighi-cl-use-assets related ko new operating lesse lisbiltes - e
Operating cash fiows from operating kases 1045 e
As 8t 31 Asat 3
Crtiser bnformation at eed of pericd December 2020 December 2019
(Operating laases right-ciusa asse's (includad in other asseds on i bilance shats) 2555 348
Opersting wases Babilties {indhuded in ofher lebiites on the batance sheets) 2512 R
Wisighted svesage remaining leass femm for apesaling leases (in years] (0] e
‘Weightd avarge ciacount rate for pemiing leases £23% 5.25%
Commiments
The followang taie summarises e maturity analyeis of the Sank's cormitments lor long-ierm iases .
Year ending 3 December 2020 Leases
o o
Fir g &
e 1
o 44
225 o
‘2025 & haceafiar BBE
Total commilmants 3,082
Lirss: efinct of disoouriing cash fows 10 their present velue e
Dperating lsase Rabdkies P H

Note 14: Interest Income
Loans
The fciiowing tabbe sresens e companents of ioan interas income:
31 Decemnber 2020 31 December 2013

Contractual inerest camed on maigages 31.562 38653
Contrachual interest aamed on ather loans 15,638 16,654
Subfotal contractual interest eamesd 7230 55337
Amortsation of lnan orgination fees (nel of amortsed cuats) ] 1108
Total loan interest Incoma 476X 56,445
Batamce of unaeortised koan fees Incheded in loans s al year end 3428 2754
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Butterfield Bank [Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
i thodsancts of Uinitad Stales dollarg)

Mote 15 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Risk Management

Toe Barlk yses dervalives for risk managernent pumposes and In meet the neads of is cusiomers. The Bank's dervatve contrecis principally involve overthe-counier (OTC)
transattions that s peivalsly negolated hetwesn the Bani and tha counterparty o the confracl and inciade intens! rale contracts and foesign exchange coniracts, The Sas may
pursue oo 1 reduct B dxpesure 1o el losses on derhatives by entering inlo Intormiational Swape #nd Dedvatives Aseocistion mastar agresaments ['1S0As"). Cepanding on
the natoee of the: dervatve trarsadsion, blatersi colliersl amangesments may be used a3 weil. Whan the Sank i engaged in mane Bien one cutstanding derfvatie emsacion wh the
A CouETpany, and alst has o fgaly enioreabie maser peng aoreament with hat counterparty, the ret marked nmwmumﬁmwﬁmm
negative expasunes wih that counterparty. When e 5 & nil régitive exposure, the Bank regards its credit sxposure 10 e oounderpany 33 being 2o, The nel marked 1o maset
postion with & patioar coustenarty nepresents 3 reonable measute of (redl risk when heve k3 legaily enrosable marster netling Agneement Detween T Bt and Pal
countemarty. For the years ended 2000 and 2014, the Bark elected nof i net its derivafive ransactions.

Cartain of thess sqrasmenis contain credit fuk-nelated contingent faatunss In which the coumerany has the aplon i sotakemte cash saitement of fe Banids net derhative Babitics
wilfs the counterpary in % evant the Bank's cedi raing falls beiow specied levels or e Rabilied rasch ool kel

AUl derveative Enancal instremenss, whether deshratec a5 hedges of not, ame meorded on the (orscidaled balance sheel & fair value withn other assels or other Eabilies. The
accouniing for changes. in the fair vales of 8 dedvatve in the Consoldated Ststermints of Oparations depands on whither the contract has been desionazed 23 8 hedge and quethes I
hedga accounting.

Wotionad amounts

Thee riational amourts ant ot recorded 35 assets or kabiies on the Corsolidated Salancs Sheats as tey repsesant e Boe amount of She toniract to which 3 £ o prce 5-appéed o
dateming the amount of cash Sows o be exchanged, Notions! aduns npaesant the wluma of cotsianding transacions and dio rol reprasant B2 potentis giin of Reg assocated with
market risk or crecit visk of such instrumients. Credt ek i Frevled 1 the positve fai vaive of the derhathee instumes?, witich & significantly less than the nofional amount.

Faérvalise

Dervative instruments, in the sbsarce of any compensaing up-ironk cash PaYMANLS. JENGraSy Rave o marke vale o incaption, Thay cbtain vake, positiv O Pegating, I8 Madvars
sxchangs rales charge. The pofential for demvatives b increass of Secreess i vakue 25 2 resul of e fongoing ticiees i genarally redemed 10 as maret fisi. Warkes risk & managed
wilhin ciaardky defined paremetars &5 prescibed by senior managemant of the Sank. The Bz valug 3 defined &z the pooft o less. sssociziad with raplacing the dervatise Coroeacts ¢
prtnvpiing manke] prices.

Flisk masriienees daiuatves comprss of doervatives rot lomaily designated s hatges, Thiss & enbered ino % manage foreign exchange risk of the Bani's axposum. Clinges i
e Ear valoe of devieathon nstrumesis nof Sormally designated as hedges am recognised In foreign wchange rvenue.

Chent service derfivatives

Tha Bank enbars o Sreign ewhangs contmes primardly 1 Meed e foneign exchangs needs of i5 cusiomens. Fortign ¢xchange coRacs an Agrpement 10 exchange speciic
amousts of cuTences BB fulos déte o1 @ specified raoe of sxchange, Changes i the fair velue of cient senvices dervativa instruments s resagnised in loreign exchangs income.

The fcliowing tatis shows the: notiongl aemos of derivetive conlracs cosstanding 93 nespectivee ooss posdive or negative fai value. Fair valua of dediatfves IS recieded i
hmma&%mmmmmmwmlmmhwmﬂwmmﬁmwmﬂth
Eabisies, and the Badk has not nethed any darvathes o the Conseldated Balancs Shaetn,

Gross Gross
Mumber of Hoblonal Posltive Negaive aa
31 Decernber 2020 Derhvative instrement cosirach. amaents. fair valug fair wabue fair vaive
Chent serviess dashatives - ——
Spot g Sgeward ferein exchange 2 380,660 igat [1.261) 14
Toral cetivativg nstrumnts 5 380,660 1404 [1,261) ]
Grosa Gross
Biuwres of Notioral Passi Negative | et
31 Decembir 2013 Dieetvaithve Inssnument Ceecracts amoun's faie Al fair ughe far wakie
et fcoward Rengigr 405,205 &5 i1 153
Spot and fooward ety exchangs 9% :
Toast dervatve balnamerts il 405,205 pxd (01} 153

The Bk hat el peovided or recebved sny coliataral with respact to e derivatn contacms held wih thind party instiutions a5 a1 31 December 2030 and 2019,

Wi manage dervative éxposure by moniofing e credit risk associmed with wach oounlerpany wsing countarparty specific credit gk Smis, LSy maser nEting amangeTants whint
aqgEtpriate and shiaining coilaieral. The Sank eiecied it o offset i the consolied blavss sheets censin grss dervative assets and Babties subject to nefling agmements.
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Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
{in Pousands of Unded Sialas dollsr)

Mote 15; Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Risk Management (continued)

The Bank aio lecied not 1o offsat cersin dedvalive sisets o fabilties and all cokaterals recaivad o« paid Tt the Bank or ne counierparties cocid legaly oliset in the event of celsat.
i e b below, these positions ane dechuciad from the net iak value presenied in the corsofdaied balancs Sl in order 10 Heser The Ml exposwres

The soésters! valuas pressnied in the foliwing table 2 Emited %0 $e reteted mel dereatve assen or abilty beiance and, ecooctingly, Jo ot inchuie xcess colieral mesned o ped.

Less: Offset  Nef fair value
ender

Less: cash
the Gertrative
Gross falr master  cossalidsad snets | seilaten] Expevaures
valug notfing balance  lisbigesnot  recsived! neto!
31 December 2020 recognised agr shests ﬂﬂlﬁ_ paid coliatara!
Detivative assats
oo and forwacd fonsign eechange @nd curmency Swaps. 14 - 1,401 141
Derivation Eabllities
Spot and noward foreign exchange and cumency swaes {1.361) - 11,261} . - 1281
Nt positve 13k valug 140 -
Het fak vaie
esenied i e
Lavss: Offsat the CarwE Liesa: cash
Gross 8T appid under  cocsshicated ey oA Eaposunes
VAR e netring balsnes  Babiies nof recsed | e o
51 Dievesiner 018 recognised  gomements sheets ofsel paid colatural
Derhvative assets
Spot and foream end a5 : 853 ]
Deovative abllites
Spot and forwaid foreign exchange and curency swaps ] : {rody - . o
Bl pititve i valug 152 -

Th fotiowing table shows the iosation and amount of gains recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Opsraions on defivitn inSFuments oustaming.

Fior B yoas ended
3 Decernber 31 Dacamber
Derivative Instrument Consalidated Statamant of Operatioas fing fem 020 019
Foraars eeign encrange Forsign eschange rewnue 1% 5
Total met gaire recogaised in net income 180 154

Note 16: Fair Yalue of Financial instruments
The fclowng table presans the Enancial ases ang fabiites that ame mezsined at fai volot on & recuring basis. Management classifies thase tems hased o the type o nputs used
e raSpectivis Mar value detesmination B descibad in Wode 2 Significant Accounting Polices.

nisviews b price: o each sacrty monthly, comparing markst values 10 epeciations and & e prior monits priee. Maragement's expeciations ane based Lpon induiedge
of prevaling market condions and deveiopments relating o spectic lsuers andlr asset ciasses hekl in the Evesiment porfolo. Whess S 5 urusull o sgnficant prce
miwerTrEs, O whise @ cenain 356t class has periormad out-ol-ine with expectations, the matier s reviewed by the Bank's Assat and LiaoiRty Comeiies.
Financsl instnaments in Level 1 inchucie Esbed equily shanes an¢ actely raded and redeemabie shares of mulual hangs.

Fnancal Bstrumints 0 Livel 2 inchude equiy secunities not acively traded, certiicate of caposls, corporate bonds, mongege-backed secudies 300 olfwr ssel-backed securiies
infiemst rale Suns. caps &nd booward freign exchange condracts, and muiual fnds not potively Taded.

Fsancisl instruments in Leval 2 includa asset-Backed Sacyres for whach tha market ks setatively Biquid and for wihich miormason about acius’ trading prices i not meadly avalble.
Thers wess no iransfers betwean Livel § and Love! 2 orLeval 2 and Level 3 during e year ersid 31 Decesiber 2020 and the yaar anded 31 Decembar 2008,
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Hote 16: Fair Value of Financial Instruments {continued)

Erms that are recognised of fairvalue ona
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recuriing bats 31 December 3120 31 Dacmmbas 2018
Fair valua Fak value
Tetal camying Total camying
amount! amount
Lesad Lewei 2 Level 3 Fairvalue Lewel 1 Linvtd 2 L 3 Faif valug
Financial assets
Dabt zacurities
Avalztle for gaie
U5 gowemmnent 30 facieral agencst - 144,02 1,544 212 906,523 . 96623
Non-US gowemment dibt secarities - 15 - 15 k] * 1828
Assetrbacked secuiies - Siudent ans B 12,845 12545 - 1288 12851
Rusidanttal morigagi-backed
sevurities - REFIL] - 13243 454 . 44548
Toral Avaitabio for sale - 1357470 12948 1370415 B64.700 12851 e7ser
Chiher assats — Darvatives 1401 - 1401 B53 ]
Financial Eabilitins
Cithar Ealbalitiees — Dprivatiogs 1351 - 1261 o : m

They bewsl 3 financial isinoments shown a5 Azset bacid Securifies = Sudent loars in the above tatie is Federsl Family Education Loan Progran (FRELP leans’) guarriasd student
fean seosty and is valued using & ron-binding Beaker quate. The fairvalue provided by Sva eoker i the Last irading price of simiar securiies tul as e Marke? $or the securly i liquit,

2 Lwdd 7 clissification s not Sppodted.

Leved T reconciliaticn 31 December 2020 31 Dacembaer 3019
Aoalatnle Avgiabe
for sake investments Totsl o S invEsITEnlS Toti
Caerying amound af beginning of year 12,801 12881 12525 12505
Feaised and unreaisad gains rcoomsad in
pther compeehenshva hooma 54 b 258 Fi-. ]
Camying amount at end of year 12945 125845 12,894 12841
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements (continued)
fin thousands of United States dolfars)

Mote 16: Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)
Th Iisliowing table peesents quaniiative infomation about recuring Lair value measurements of assets dagsied within Level 3 of the fair vaiue hisrardhy.

31 December 2020 31 Decamber 2018
Fnancial Instramant Typs Vahuation Technigue Fair Value Fair Valut
Asset-backed securities - Studant lsars Unadpsstid Bird oty prioed 12045 12831
items othar than those recogrised at fair vales an & recurring basis
31 December 2020 31 Desember 2018
Fairvalue Camying Fair  Aporeciaztion ! Carmying Far  Appeeciation |
higranshy amsunt valua  (depreciation) amount value  {depreciaion]
Financial assats
Cash due from banks Level 1 1,083,535 1083595 - TETAD7 T57.H0T
Shart term invesiments Lewai P 250 . . - .
Investmients held b maturty Lavei 2 835,841 g 015 443 H43534 1921
Lians, net of alowance bor credit losses Lavel 2 1,124,038 1,130,805 6567 1104 525 1,106,674 1583
Financial liab#ities
Cusinmer deposis
Demand daposts Leved 2 517,235 357259 . REmEAS 2355315 .
Tem dapasits Lewel 2 531,602 5X2 M4 {442 TS84T 480,148 {301)

Nota 17: Intarest Rate Risk

The loliveing table sals oul tha assats, fablifies and sharshaldes's squity on e date of the earier of covrctual maturity, xpictiad ratunty of ranvicing date. Usa of s table 1o derive
Information abcent the Bank's interest ra% risk postion i Bmited by the fact st ausiomens may choase It feminads their financal instuments at a dale eader than e contractual
maturity or rapricing date. Exampies of this incude feod-rate morigages, which are shown at contactual matunty but which may pee-pay earser, and carain term deposits, which am
shown 2! contractual maturity but which may be withdamm before Teir contractual manrty subject 1o prepayment penaities and notica periods. Investments am shown basad cn
remaising contractual maturities. The resnaining contrachul principsl maturSes for morigage-backed securites (prmarily LIS governmend agancies) do not consider prepaymen's.
Remaining expecied maturities wil difler from corsractual maturifes because bamowers may hawt the right o prepay obligations belore e underiying morigages matune.

11 Decamber 2020 Eariiar of conbractual maturily or raar#_ﬂg [+ ]
Within 3 EIT Y Gt 12 T ARar Nonsdaterest
(in § milans) months moaths months ¥EaT Svears  bearing fisads Total
Assels
Cash due from banks 1045 - . . . ki 1084
Imesitrments 13 12 | 8 2942 . 1%
Loans Sl 12 n 5t 124 =1 1424
Cfer assols . . . . - fi] bi ]
Tolal assets. 1888 24 53 59 2055 112 4430
Liabities and sharehcider's equity
Sharsholder's equity - . . . . 13 o
Demand dapasits 19 . . . . 1,043 3517
Term degisits 243 FiF 18 i . : =2
Drwer it . : . . . &1 41
Total lishifities and sharehalder's equity 2777 72 18 1 . 1404 4480
inlerest e sensitvty gap {B11) {248) FTi 53 2,266 {1,302}
Cumulative inbinest rate sensitivity gap [B11) {1,059} (1.5 364} 130 -
]
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Butterfield Bank {Cayman) Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements [continued)

{in thowsands of United States dofiars)

Mota 17: Interest Rate Risk [continued)

31 Docaribar 2019 Eastior of confrachal makity of tepticing das
Witin 3 K G iz e Aler NorHnterest
fin § miions] man meiths o vears Sysars  bearingbends Totl
Assaty
Ciash due From banks 733 kY 757
Short tanm nvwestments . . - . . = .
Investmants 178 2 2 a1 1845 1892
Lieans b6 9 L] 93 142 . 1108
Ciher assats - . - = 85 B3
Tatal pssets 1,717 T 13 1,798 109 3,838
Listetes and shareholdar's aquity
Sharehoider's equity - 32 ae
Diemand deposis 213 - - Ta2 2955
Tem daposits 355 3 &2 i - 480
Other Eabilties . . . . - & B2
Tetal Rabibties and shaceholder's equity 2,559 75 42 7 - 1,946 3830
Inberest rate [B52] 144) B 127 1,798 (1037} -
Curreatativg inerest iy sersiiiy gap [552) {896) = (74t} 1037 .

Note 18: Regulatory Capital

The Bank i subjesct o capital reguiremants of he Basal || ramework as dafined by Be Cayman kslands Meratary Authonty ("CIMA"), which came inlo effect on 1 Janwary 2011 in e
Cayman lslards, The measure of capital sirangth established by CINA Tor e Bank & the risk weighted fotal capital rafio with 2 minimum of 11%. A 31 December 202 the risk weighted

capital rato was 17.80% [2012: 21.12%),

Mote 19: Related Party Transactions

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Rssals

Cash dus from ks - padent and affistes
Loans o staff

Loan o afSEted entity

Apcred inferest

Coer msses - aEiRates

Liabilties

Cusieener deposits = afSEabes and afher related parties
Criver habdites — parent and afffates

Consolidated St of O
Moan-knlerest noome

Assal Management

MNed-Interest Incoma

Intares! Incoma — Deposis with hanks

Inlgrest lncome = Loans 1o e¥iated entities and other relaled partes

Ineres! Expense - Depdsits with banks

Hon-Interest Expanse
Salanes and staff benafis
Other aepanses.

H Decembar 2020 31 December 2018
1T 218 el
ELRLES 5697
MM ookl
233 iy
1,282 7256
8178 BAOT
2447 a3z
iyl E&Y
158 58
g 453

n 40
1,052 1.086
4545 2415
1,288 1416

"inchuded within professional and oufside services ane infragroup chames from shared serdice cantres and affilaiss fat represent manpoeer costs and ofhar Btinbulabis overteads for

Fervices reoahgd.

205/240

k)



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)
{in thowsands of Uired Stafes oolars)

Mote 19: Related Party Transactions (continued)

The Bank provices, 5 & benafl 1o employees, oan incitiea at predarmnd lending rates and banking senvices i reduond changes.

The Sank estabiished a programime 1o offer loans with prederpatial rzies 10 eligibks Bank empioyess, subyec o certain condions sef by the Bank and provided that such emsicyess meet
carain oedit oritenia, Loan paymans ans Sevioed by avtomatically mmwmummmmmwmm;mmmmn
the same podces. as those for the Bank's regulsr sl banking clents. The Bank's abilty 1o offer preferental rates on inans depends upan 8 number of facions, including markes
condions, ragadations 2nd th Bank's cviral peoftabilly, The Bank hes the rght o chenge Rs eemployen loan poficy 21 any Gme after notilying participanis. The interest rate benefl 1o
employees for the year ended 31 Decamber 2020 was S0372 milion (2019 50,734 milon),

Signiicant batances due and from aifiSaid eniities ofer than the. Parent Bank are-inclded in Loans and Bai deposis. Dufng the year 2019 the Sark e GBP 25 milicn 10 s
Guemsey afffiata, repayable in ful by 15 July 2028 i a vaziable inlasl rale bésad on the Bark of Engiand prime fife plus 2.5%, subjsct o3 fooe of 3.00%. The subsrdinaied det
trested g2 & p0an of 8 capdsl nejure for reguisary purpeaes. In the ordinary course of business, the Bank recebves from and provides to s afilaled sad cther miated coponations, ol
Earking sanvices on bems similar to thoss offensd to non-relaled parties. The nondnlanest expensss are comprisad of share hased companmation aloeaions from the Pamnt Bank giong
with shared professional sesvices: aliocations 2 loan and coltnen| adminisirasion fees 00 pavent and Subsidiany of parnl,

Loan recaivatias from the Ganik's Pa'eitat 31 December 2020 tled §150.5 mifion (2015: $1529 mioa).

Draring 2019, the Bank assgred $47 7 mion of 2 ioan | onginated to #s Guesmsay based affiliate. The ousstanding balance on that assigned loan was $44.7 milion (2055 547.4 mikon)
&3 8l 31 Decembar 2030

HNote 20: Subseguent Events
The financial stetements wene avalable 1o be issuad and subsequent svents have been evaiuzied up &0 19 Febrary 2001,
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Butterfield Trust Cayman Limited

2021 545

2021 122
MUFG MUFG Fund Services Bermuda Limited

2021 250,000 2,723

MUFG

PayPay

2021 9,500

387

CTA 21

HFR LLC HFR Asset Management, LLC
HFR LLC

HFR LLC

Butterfield Trust Bermuda Limited
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2021 120 3,072

N.T.
N.T.
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Butterfield Trust Cayman Limited

MUFG Fund Services Bermuda Limited

LLC HFR Asset Management, LLC

Butterfield Trust Bermuda Limited

100
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1.1 1993
1.2
1.3

1993

2020
1.4
1.5 2019 12
1.6
2.1

CIMA
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10,857 2,886

1960

2020

2020
2020

CIMA
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2.3

2.4 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
2.5 2020
15

CIMA

2.6

3.1
CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

3.2
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CIMA 100,000 80,000
CIMA
CIMA
15
80,000 100,000
CIMA
21 CIMA
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4.2 CIMA
CIMA
4.3
CIMA
21
4.4 2006 12 27
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
5.1
5.2
CIMA

48
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5.7

5.8
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CIMA

1925
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50

CIMA

.1 CIMA CIMA
CIMA

500

CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA
10

CIMA CIMA

.7 CIMA 7.9
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7.8 7.7 CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
7.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA
7.11 CIMA CIMA
7.12 7.9 7.9

CIMA CIMA

7.13 7.9
7.14 7.13
7.15 7.9 7.9

CIMA CIMA CIMA

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

7.16 7.9 7.9 7.15
CIMA CIMA

7.17 7.15 CIMA

CIMA
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94
7.9
7.9
CIMA 7.9
CIMA
CIMA CIMA
500
CIMA CIMA
CIMA
10
CIMA
10
CIMA
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8.10 8.8
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8.14 8.13
8.15 8.10
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8.16 8.10
8.15
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CIMA 8.10
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CIMA

223/240

EDINETOOOO

OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

94

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OOo00oDOoO0oDOo0o0oo00boo0Oooo(E30019)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.1 CIMA CIMA

9.2 9.1 9.1
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20

10 CIMA

10.1 CIMA CIMA

CIMA
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12.2 247 248

10

13

13.1
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7.17 8.17
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2003 11
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14.3

14.4
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14.6 20
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14.7
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Independent Auditor's Report

Trustee
Monex-HFR Private Equity & Hedge Fund Investments 2007

Report on the Financia Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financia statements of Monex-HFR Private Equity & Hedge Fund
Investments 2007, a Cayman Islands series trust (the Series Trust) and its subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated
statement of assets and liabilities, including the consolidated schedule of investments, as of December 31, 2020, the
related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’ s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
the Series Trust and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2020, and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and
their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America

RSM USLLP
Chicago, Illinois
June 25, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited and
its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, changes in shareholder's equity and
cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
financial position of Butterfield Bank (Cayman) Limited and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Idlands
19 February 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Trustee of
Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2007:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge
Fund Investments 2007, a Cayman Islands series trust (the “Series Trust”), and its subsidiary which comprise the
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities, including the consolidated schedule of investments, as of December 31,
2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financia statements (all expressed in Japanese Y en).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Series Trust's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al materia respects, the
consolidated financial position of Monex-HFR Private Equity Fund & Hedge Fund Investments 2007 and its Subsidiary
as of December 31, 2019, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets, and their cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, at December 31, 2019 the Series Trust held investments
with a fair value of \1,002,628,449 (92.95% of net assets), which was estimated by the Trustee based on information
provided by the underlying fund managers. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Deloitte & Touche
CAYMAN ISLANDS
June 26, 2020
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